
Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 

REGULAR OPEN MEETING OF THE UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS A CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION 

Tuesday, March 13, 2018 - 9:30 AM 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room 24351 El Toro Road

NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA

1. Call to Order / Establish Quorum - Juanita Skillman, President

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Director Tibbitts

3. Acknowledge Media

4. Approval of Agenda

5. Approval of the Meeting Minutes
a. February 13, 2018 - Regular Open Session

6. Report of Chair
a. Disaster Preparedness Task Force Update – Director Achrekar

7. Open Forum (Three Minutes per Speaker) - At this time Members may address
the Board of Directors regarding items not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction
of this Board of Directors. There is a maximum time limit of three minutes per
speaker and a speaker may only address the Board once during this period.  The
Board reserves the right to limit the total amount of time allotted for the Open
Forum.

8. Responses to Open Forum Speakers

9. Update from VMS – Director Liberatore

10. CEO Report

11. Consent Calendar - All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are
recommended for action by committees and will be enacted by the Board by one
motion. In the event that an item is removed from the Consent Calendar by
members of the Board, such item(s) shall be the subject of further discussion and
action by the Board.



United Laguna Woods Mutual  March 13, 2018  
Regular Open Meeting of the Board of Directors  
Page 2 of 4 

Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 

a. Architectural Control and Standards Committee Recommendations:

(1)   Approval recommendation – 312-F (Cordoba 1A6) – Install Windows 
in Existing Patio Wall Openings 

(2)   Approval recommendation -  765-A (La Corona, Plan 3B) – Request 
to Retain Patio Enclosure  

b. Landscape Committee Recommendations:

None 

c. Finance Committee Recommendations:

(1)   Approval of Resolution to Record Lien against Member’s ID; 947-381-
35 

d. Entertain a Motion to Approve the Election Schedule for 2018

12. Unfinished Business
a. Entertain a Motion to Approve a Resolution Endorsing the Handyman

Program and Setting Policy (March Initial Notification—must postpone 30
days to comply with Civil Code §4360)

b. Entertain a Motion to Introduce a Resolution Establishing a Policy for
Directors’ Access to Corporate Books and Records

13. New Business
a. Entertain a Motion Approving a Resolution of the Committee Appointments

for United and GRF

b. Discuss and Consider a Revision to the Electrical Usage Reimbursement
Policy

14. Committee Reports
a. Report of the Finance Committee / Financial Report – Director Morrison

Next meeting March 27, 2018, 2:00 p.m. in the Sycamore Room.

b. Report of the Architectural Control and Standards Committee – Director
Dorrell.  Next meeting March 15, 2018, 9:30 a.m. in the Sycamore Room.

c. Report of the Communications Committee – Director Blackwell.  Next
meeting TBA.

d. Report of Executive Hearings Committee - President Skillman.  Next
meeting March 22, 2018, 9:00 a.m. in the Willow Room.



United Laguna Woods Mutual  March 13, 2018  
Regular Open Meeting of the Board of Directors  
Page 3 of 4 

Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 

e Report of the Governing Documents Review Committee - President 
Skillman. Next meeting March 26, 2018, 2:00 p.m. in the Sycamore Room.

f. Report of the Landscape Committee - Director Blackwell. Next meeting
April 12, 2018, 9:00 a.m. in the Board Room.

g. Report of the Maintenance & Construction Committee - Director Tibbetts.
Next meeting April 25, 2018, 9:00 a.m. in the Board Room

h. Report of the Resident Advisory Committee – Director Tibbetts.  Next
meeting April 19, 2018, 3:00 p.m. in the Sycamore Room

15. GRF Committee Highlights
a. Report of the Finance Committee—Director Morrison. Next meeting April

18, 2018, 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room.

b. Report of the Community Activities Committee—Director Dorrell. Next
meeting May 10, 2018, 2:00 p.m. in the Board Room.

c. Report of the Maintenance & Construction Committee—Director Tibbets.
Next meeting April 11, 2018, 9:30 a.m. in the Board Room.

d. Report of the Media and Communication Committee—Director Blackwell.
Next meeting March 14, 2018, 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room.

e. Report of the Mobility and Vehicles Committee—Director Achrekar. Next
meeting April 4, 2018, 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room.

f. Report of the Security and Community Access Committee—Director
Tibbetts. Next meeting April 26, 2018, 1:30 p.m. in the Board Room.

 Laguna Woods Village Traffic Hearings – Director Achrekar
Next meeting March 21, 2018, 9:00 a.m. in the Board Room and
1:00 p.m. in the Cypress Room

16. Future Agenda Items - All matters listed under Future Agenda Items are
Resolutions on 30-day public review or items for a future Board Meetings.  No
action will be taken by the Board on these agenda items at this meeting.  The Board
will take action on these items at a future Board Meeting.

a. Entertain a Motion to Introduce a Resolution for Closets and Interior
Partition Walls Policy (FEBRUARY Initial Notification—must postpone 30
days to comply with Civil Code §4360)

b. Entertain a Motion to Introduce a Resolution Establishing a Policy and



United Laguna Woods Mutual  March 13, 2018  
Regular Open Meeting of the Board of Directors  
Page 4 of 4 

Hearing loop technology is available in the Board room for attendees who have hearing aids with a t-coil 

Application for Co-Occupants (FEBRUARY Initial Notification—must 
postpone 30 days to comply with Civil Code §4360) 

17. Directors' Comments

18. Recess - At this time the Meeting will recess for lunch and reconvene to Executive
Session to discuss the following matters per California Civil Code §4935.

EXECUTIVE SESSION NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Approval of Agenda 
Approval of the Following Meeting Minutes; 
 (a) February 13, 2018 – Regular Executive Session 
Discuss and Consider Member Matters 
Discuss Personnel Matters 
Discuss and Consider Contractual Matters 
Discuss and Consider Litigation Matters 

19. Adjourn



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 1 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 2 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 3 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 4 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 5 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 6 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 7 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 8 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 9 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 10 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 11 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 12 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 13 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 14 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 15 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 16 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 17 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 18 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 19 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 20 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 21 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 22 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 23 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 24 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 25 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 26 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 27 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 28 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 29 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 30 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 31 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 32 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 33 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 34 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 35 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 36 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 37 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 38 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 39 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 40 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 41 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 42 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 43 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 44 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 45 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 46 of 47



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 47 of 47



this page intentionally left blank



 312-F (Cordoba 1A6) - Install Windows in Existing Patio Wall Openings 
 

RESOLUTION 01-18-XXX 
Variance Request 

WHEREAS, Mr. John Choy of 312-F Avenida Castilla of United Laguna Woods Mutual, 
submitted a request for a variance to install windows in existing patio wall openings; and 

WHEREAS, a Neighborhood Awareness Notice was sent to Owners of affected Units 
on February 5, 2018, notifying them that an application to make an alteration to a 
neighboring Unit had been made and that comments or objections could be made in 
writing to the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee or in person at the 
Architectural Controls and Standards Committee Meeting on February 15, 2018. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on March 13, 2018, the Board of Directors 
hereby approves the request with the condition that the proposed alterations are 
constructed in accordance with the following criteria: 

1. All pending Mutual Consents must receive final approval prior to any new application 
for Mutual Consent with the Permits and Alterations Department. 

2. A Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations has been granted at 312-F for Installing 
windows in existing patio openings, subject to the attached plans stamped approved 
and is subject to a final inspection by the Division.  Any variations to the approved 
attached plans are not allowed and could result in a stop work notice and/or severe 
fines to the Member.  

3. No improvement shall be installed, constructed, modified or altered at Unit 312-F, 
(“Property”) within the United Laguna Woods Mutual (“Mutual”) without an approved 
Mutual Consent for Manor Alterations application for the improvement has been 
made to, and approved, in writing, by, the Village Management Services, Inc. (“VMS, 
Inc.”), Manor Alterations Division (“Division”), or, in the event of a Variance from the 
Mutual’s Alteration Standards, the Architectural Control and Standards Committee 
(“ACSC”). In the event written permission is given for the installation, construction, 
modification or alteration of any improvement(s) upon the Property, the Member s 
(“Member ”) agrees to comply with the Mutual’s Governing Documents and any 
specific terms or conditions imposed, and that the installation, construction, 
modification or alteration shall be in strict compliance with the terms of the approval. 

4. Member  hereby consents to and grants to the Mutual and the Division, and their 
representatives, a right of entry upon the Property at any time to be used to inspect 
the Property and the improvements thereon and for the Mutual and the Division, and 
their representatives and contractors to remedy any violation upon the Property, 
including, but not limited to, removing trash, removing any improvement installed 
without approval or modifying an improvement to bring the same into compliance 

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 1 of 8



with the terms of the approval. 

5. All costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or removal of the 
improvement, present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s Member at 
312-F and all future Mutual Members at 312-F.  

6. Member shall be responsible for all activity by contractors, subcontractors, material 
suppliers and their employees and agents and any others who perform work on the 
Property, including any violation of the Mutual’s Governing Documents, including, 
but not limited to, traffic and parking violations, maintenance of a clean job site at all 
times, damage to Mutual property, and use of Mutual property for storage of 
equipment or materials without prior approval.  Member acknowledges and agrees 
that all such persons are his/her invitees. Member shall be responsible for informing 
all his/her invitees of the Mutual’s Rules and Regulations. Member shall be liable for 
any violation of the Mutual’s Governing Documents by any invitee, including any 
fine, assessment or other charge levied in connection therewith. 

7. Member is responsible for following the gate clearance process 
(http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com) in place to admit contractors and other 
invitees.   

8. Member’s contractors and other invitees shall travel to and from the job site by the 
most direct route available and are not authorized to use Mutual recreational 
facilities or other amenities while they are in the Village for performance of work in 
connection with the Property. 

9. Parking of contractors or other invitees’ vehicles is prohibited in covered resident 
parking, open resident spaces, handicapped spaces or fire lanes.  Contractors or 
other invitees must park on the street.  To the extent possible contractors’ or other 
invitees’ vehicles should be limited in number. 

10. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations, a complete set of unit 
specific plans prepared by a licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the 
proposed improvement must be submitted to the Division office located in the 
Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any required 
structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the building is maintained 
upon completion of the proposed improvement.  

11. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor Alterations, any altered exterior 
surface should match the Building color; vinyl fence/gate will be either white or 
taupe, tubular steel or wrought iron fence/gate will be black or white; the approved 
colors and materials are identified as “United Laguna Woods Mutual Color 
Selections” at Resident Services, located at the Community Center first floor. 

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 2 of 8



12. Prior to the Issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations, the Member shall post 
a Conformance Deposit in the amount of $250 for all improvements exceeding a 
total of $500. The Conformance Deposit will be held until both a Final Mutual 
Consent for Unit Alterations and a Final City Building Permit Issuance if required, to 
assure no damages to Mutual property occurs during construction, including, but not 
limited to, internet/TV, landscaping, or exterior walls/roof.    

13. The Conformance Deposit shall be held by the Mutual and applied, at the Mutual’s 
sole discretion, to any fine levied against the Member or the Property, to cover 
and/or recoup any costs whatsoever, including, but not limited to, administrative and 
legal costs, incurred by the Mutual or VMS, Inc., in connection with the Property, or 
to any unpaid charges or assessments on the Mutual’s account for the Property. For 
example, the Mutual could apply all or a portion of the Conformance Deposit to 
cover the following: fines levied against any invitee of Member; fines levied for 
construction violations; costs incurred by the Mutual in repairing damage to Mutual 
property caused by Member ’s contractor or other invitee; costs incurred by the 
Mutual in curing a violation on the Property; costs incurred in removing or altering an 
improvement upon the Property; or to an unpaid assessment, special assessment, 
late charge, interest or collection costs posted to the Mutual’s account for the 
Property. The foregoing list is illustrative only and in no way represents the only 
situations where the Mutual could apply all or a portion of the Conformance Deposit. 

14. If at any time the amount of the Conformance Deposit falls below 3/4ths of the 
amount originally required to be posted, Member agrees to immediately deposit 
additional sums with the Mutual in an amount sufficient to return the Conformance 
Deposit to the originally required level. Until the Conformance Deposit is so 
replenished, an automatic stop work order shall be in effect. 

15. Any remaining Conformance Deposit is refundable if the Member notifies the 
Division, in writing, that the improvement(s) for which the Conformance Deposit was 
posted have been completed in accordance with the approval, and the Division 
agrees with the same.  The Mutual will mail the unused portion of the Conformance 
Deposit, if any, to the Member’s address of record with the Mutual. Under no 
circumstances shall Member be entitled to any interest on any portion of the 
Conformance Deposit. If no written request for return of a Conformance Deposit is 
made by Member within two years from the date when the Conformance Deposit is 
posted with the Mutual, the Conformance Deposit will be deemed forfeited to the 
Mutual. 

16. All improvements must be installed in accordance with the California State Building 
Code, and the published Mutual Architectural Alterations Standards. See 
http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com.  

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 3 of 8



17. During construction, work hours established by the Mutual and the Noise Ordinance 
set forth in the City of Laguna Woods Municipal Code must be adhered to at all 
times. 

18. During construction, both the Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations and the City 
Building Permit must be on display for public view at all times in a location approved 
by the Division. 

19. It is mandatory that no waste or materials associated with the construction be 
dumped in the Village trash bins; such waste or materials associated with the 
construction must be disposed of offsite by the contractor.   

20. The Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations expires six months after the date of 
approval, unless an application is submitted with fees and approved by the Division 
for an extension.  Only one extension for a maximum of an additional six months 
may be granted. 

21. Violations of the forgoing conditions or the Mutual’s Governing Documents (See 
http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com), including, but not limited to, unpaid 
assessments, work outside the approved plans, excessive noise, illegal dumping, or 
working after hours, will result in disciplinary action, which could result in a stop work 
notice, loss of privileges and/or severe fines to the  Member.  Such fines left unpaid 
will result in forfeiture of a portion or all of the Conformance Deposit required above 
or other legal remedy. 

22. Mutual Member shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless United and its officers, 
directors, committee Members and agents from and against any and all claims, 
demands, costs, fines, judgments, settlements and any other costs, expenses, 
amounts and liabilities arising from Mutual Member’s improvements and installation, 
construction, design and maintenance of same. 

 

  

Agenda Item # 11a 
Page 4 of 8



 765-A (La Corona, Plan 3B) - Request to Retain Patio Enclosure

RESOLUTION 01-17-XXX 
Variance Request 

WHEREAS, Mr. Mosen Asadi of 765-A Calle Aragon of United Laguna Woods Mutual, 
submitted a request to retain the patio enclosure; 

WHEREAS, that request was denied by the Board on September 12, 2017;  

WHEREAS, In accordance with Resolution 01-13-182, Mr. Asadi submitted a letter of 
appeal to the Board’s decision on September 26, 2017;  

WHEREAS, on November 14, 2017, the Board adopted Resolution 01-17-126, denying 
the appeal;  

WHEREAS, on December 22, 2017 the Board issued the Member required conditions 
necessary to comply and, 

WHEREAS, on February 15, 2018, the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee 
reviewed the status of those conditions. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that Resolution 01-17-126 adopted November 
14, 2017 is hereby superseded and cancelled; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, on March 13, 2018, the Board of Directors hereby approves 
the request with the condition that the proposed alterations are constructed in 
accordance with the following criteria:  

1. A Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations has been granted at 765-A to Retain Front 
Patio Enclosure, subject to the attached plans stamped approved and is subject to 
a final inspection by the Division.  Any variations to the approved attached plans are 
not allowed and could result in a stop work notice and/or severe fines to the 
Member.

2. A City of Laguna Woods permit is required, which may include the requirement to
obtain clearance from the South Coast Air Quality Management District (Asbestos
Hot Line at (909) 396-2336).  Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit
Alterations, the appropriate City of Laguna Woods permit number(s) must be
submitted to the Division office located in the Laguna Woods Village Community
Center. The City permit must be finalized within the prescribed timeframe, and a
copy of the final permit must be submitted to the Division within two weeks.

3. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations, if required, a Mutual
Roof Alteration Notification (“Tie-In Form”) must be submitted to the Division.  All
roof tie-ins must be performed by a C-39 Licensed Contractor.  The Member  may
hire a C-39 Licensed Contractor of his/her own choice to perform roof tie-ins for the
installation of solar panels on all roof types except PVC Cool Roofs. For PVC Cool
Roofs, regardless of the roof type, all tie-ins must be performed by the Mutual’s
roofing contractor at the Member ’s expense. All tie-ins may only be made to sound

Agenda Item # 11a
Page 5 of 8



structural elements. Existing structural elements proposed to be tied to, which 
exhibit signs of dry rot or other structural defects, must be repaired at the Mutual’s 
expense prior to installation.    

4. No improvement shall be installed, constructed, modified or altered at Unit 765-A,
(“Property”) within the United Laguna Woods Mutual (“Mutual”) without an approved
Mutual Consent for Manor Alterations application for the improvement has been
made to, and approved, in writing, by, the Village Management Services, Inc.
(“VMS, Inc.”), Manor Alterations Division (“Division”), or, in the event of a Variance
from the Mutual’s Alteration Standards, the Architectural Control and Standards
Committee (“ACSC”). In the event written permission is given for the installation,
construction, modification or alteration of any improvement(s) upon the Property,
the Member s (“Member ”) agrees to comply with the Mutual’s Governing
Documents and any specific terms or conditions imposed, and that the installation,
construction, modification or alteration shall be in strict compliance with the terms of
the approval.

5. Member  hereby consents to and grants to the Mutual and the Division, and their
representatives, a right of entry upon the Property at any time to be used to inspect
the Property and the improvements thereon and for the Mutual and the Division,
and their representatives and contractors to remedy any violation upon the
Property, including, but not limited to, removing trash, removing any improvement
installed without approval or modifying an improvement to bring the same into
compliance with the terms of the approval.

6. All costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or removal of the
improvement, present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s Member at
765-A and all future Mutual Members at 765-A.

7. Member shall be responsible for all activity by contractors, subcontractors, material
suppliers and their employees and agents and any others who perform work on the
Property, including any violation of the Mutual’s Governing Documents, including,
but not limited to, traffic and parking violations, maintenance of a clean job site at all
times, damage to Mutual property, and use of Mutual property for storage of
equipment or materials without prior approval.  Member acknowledges and agrees
that all such persons are his/her invitees. Member shall be responsible for informing
all his/her invitees of the Mutual’s Rules and Regulations. Member shall be liable for
any violation of the Mutual’s Governing Documents by any invitee, including any
fine, assessment or other charge levied in connection therewith.

8. Member is responsible for following the gate clearance process
(http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com) in place to admit contractors and other
invitees.

9. Member’s contractors and other invitees shall travel to and from the job site by the
most direct route available and are not authorized to use Mutual recreational
facilities or other amenities while they are in the Village for performance of work in
connection with the Property.

Agenda Item # 11a
Page 6 of 8



10. Parking of contractors or other invitees’ vehicles is prohibited in covered resident
parking, open resident spaces, handicapped spaces or fire lanes.  Contractors or
other invitees must park on the street.  To the extent possible contractors’ or other
invitees’ vehicles should be limited in number.

11. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations, a complete set of unit
specific plans prepared by a licensed architect or structural engineer depicting the
proposed improvement must be submitted to the Division office located in the
Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any required
structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the building is maintained
upon completion of the proposed improvement.

12. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Manor Alterations, any altered exterior
surface should match the Building color; vinyl fence/gate will be either white or
taupe, tubular steel or wrought iron fence/gate will be black or white; the approved
colors and materials are identified as “United Laguna Woods Mutual Color
Selections” at Resident Services, located at the Community Center first floor.

13. Prior to the Issuance of a Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations, the Member shall
post a Conformance Deposit in the amount of $250 for all improvements exceeding
a total of $500. The Conformance Deposit will be held until both a Final Mutual
Consent for Unit Alterations and a Final City Building Permit Issuance if required, to
assure no damages to Mutual property occurs during construction, including, but
not limited to, internet/TV, landscaping, or exterior walls/roof.

14. The Conformance Deposit shall be held by the Mutual and applied, at the Mutual’s
sole discretion, to any fine levied against the Member or the Property, to cover
and/or recoup any costs whatsoever, including, but not limited to, administrative
and legal costs, incurred by the Mutual or VMS, Inc., in connection with the
Property, or to any unpaid charges or assessments on the Mutual’s account for the
Property. For example, the Mutual could apply all or a portion of the Conformance
Deposit to cover the following: fines levied against any invitee of Member; fines
levied for construction violations; costs incurred by the Mutual in repairing damage
to Mutual property caused by Member ’s contractor or other invitee; costs incurred
by the Mutual in curing a violation on the Property; costs incurred in removing or
altering an improvement upon the Property; or to an unpaid assessment, special
assessment, late charge, interest or collection costs posted to the Mutual’s account
for the Property. The foregoing list is illustrative only and in no way represents the
only situations where the Mutual could apply all or a portion of the Conformance
Deposit.

15. If at any time the amount of the Conformance Deposit falls below 3/4ths of the
amount originally required to be posted, Member agrees to immediately deposit
additional sums with the Mutual in an amount sufficient to return the Conformance
Deposit to the originally required level. Until the Conformance Deposit is so
replenished, an automatic stop work order shall be in effect.

16. Any remaining Conformance Deposit is refundable if the Member notifies the
Division, in writing, that the improvement(s) for which the Conformance Deposit was

Agenda Item # 11a
Page 7 of 8



posted have been completed in accordance with the approval, and the Division 
agrees with the same.  The Mutual will mail the unused portion of the Conformance 
Deposit, if any, to the Member’s address of record with the Mutual. Under no 
circumstances shall Member be entitled to any interest on any portion of the 
Conformance Deposit. If no written request for return of a Conformance Deposit is 
made by Member within two years from the date when the Conformance Deposit is 
posted with the Mutual, the Conformance Deposit will be deemed forfeited to the 
Mutual. 

17. All improvements must be installed in accordance with the California State Building
Code, and the published Mutual Architectural Alterations Standards. See
http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com.

18. During construction, work hours established by the Mutual and the Noise Ordinance
set forth in the City of Laguna Woods Municipal Code must be adhered to at all
times.

19. During construction, both the Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations and the City
Building Permit must be on display for public view at all times in a location approved
by the Division.

20. It is mandatory that no waste or materials associated with the construction be
dumped in the Village trash bins; such waste or materials associated with the
construction must be disposed of offsite by the contractor.

21. The Mutual Consent for Unit Alterations expires six months after the date of
approval, unless an application is submitted with fees and approved by the Division
for an extension.  Only one extension for a maximum of an additional six months
may be granted.

22. Violations of the forgoing conditions or the Mutual’s Governing Documents (See
http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com), including, but not limited to, unpaid
assessments, work outside the approved plans, excessive noise, illegal dumping, or
working after hours, will result in disciplinary action, which could result in a stop
work notice, loss of privileges and/or severe fines to the  Member.  Such fines left
unpaid will result in forfeiture of a portion or all of the Conformance Deposit required
above or other legal remedy.

23. Mutual Member shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless United and its officers,
directors, committee Members and agents from and against any and all claims,
demands, costs, fines, judgments, settlements and any other costs, expenses,
amounts and liabilities arising from Mutual Member’s improvements and installation,
construction, design and maintenance of same.

Agenda Item # 11a
Page 8 of 8



RESOLUTION 01-18-XX 

Recording of a Lien 

WHEREAS, Member ID 947-455-60; is currently delinquent to United 
Laguna Woods Mutual with regard to the monthly assessment; and 

WHEREAS, a Notice of Delinquent Assessment (Lien) will be filed upon 
adoption of this resolution following at least a majority vote of the Board 
(with no delegation of such action by the Board), acting in an open 
meeting, and for which the Board's vote is recorded in the minutes;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, March 13, 2018, that the Board of 
Directors hereby approves the recording of a Lien for Member ID 947-455-
60 and; 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the 
purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item # 11c
Page 1 of 1



this page intentionally left blank



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: March 13, 2018 

FOR:  Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: 2018 Election Schedule 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Board approve the Election Schedule – United 2018 to be sent to 
Martin and Chapman, the approved Inspector of Elections for the 2018 Annual Meeting of the 
Corporate Members. 

BACKGROUND 

Martin and Chapman have been retained as the Inspector of Election for 2018.  The Election 
Schedule 2018 details the dates when Staff and the election consultant need to follow to 
complete the Annual Elections in the Fall 2018. 

DISCUSSION 

The attached Election Schedule Calculations 2018 have been reviewed by legal counsel in 
accordance to the Corporation Bylaws.  The Election Schedule 2018 details the dates based 
on the Calculation Schedule when action needs to be taken by Staff and the election 
consultant, Martin and Chapman, in order to complete the election in the Fall. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Election costs included in annual budget. 

Prepared By: Cheryl Silva, Corporate Secretary 

Reviewed By: Lori Moss, Community Manager 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
2018 Election Schedule 

Agenda Item # 11d
Page 1 of 3



this page intentionally left blank



ELECTION SCHEDULE 
PER CORPORATION BYLAWS 

UNITED MUTUAL 
As of January 29, 2018 

02/14/18 

Appoint Inspectors of Election February  

Approve Election Schedule March 

Record Date for Annual Meeting Notice 
60 days before date of Annual Meeting (Bylaws 

Section 5.10b) 

Mail Annual Meeting Notice (postcard) 
12-15 days before Annual Meeting (Bylaws 5.4a); 20 
days before Annual Meeting if mailed (Corporations 

Code Section 7511) 

Self-Nominations Close (5:00 PM) 
60 Days before  

Annual Meeting (5.2) 

Candidate Statement Due 
60 Days before  

Annual Meeting (5.2) 

Ballot Information to Printer 
2 weeks prior to mailing  
(per Martin & Chapman) 

Record Date for Voting 
60 days before date of Annual Meeting (Restated 

Bylaws Section 5.10c) 

Copy of Mailing List 
1 month before mailing  
(per Martin & Chapman) 

Mail Ballot Package 
30 days before Ballots Due Back 

(§5115) 

Meet the Candidates 
August, TBD 

(before of day ballots mailed) 
Replay Meet the Candidates TBD 

Ballots Due Back 
30 days after mailing 

(§5115) 
Counting of Ballots by Inspectors of Election 
(open meeting) 

2 days after ballots return 
(per Martin & Chapman) 

Mail Notice of Organizational Meeting 
4 days prior to  

Organizational Board Meeting 

Annual Meeting Date 

October 9, 2018 
2nd Tuesday in Oct (5.2) 

9:30 AM 
Board Room 

Organizational Board Meeting 
Following Annual Meeting 

Agenda Item # 11d
Page 2 of 3



ELECTION SCHEDULE 
 2018

Appoint Inspectors of 
Election 2/13/2018

Approve Election Dates March

Record Date for Mailing of 
Meeting Notice 8/10/2018

Mail Meeting Notice 
(postcard) 7/10/2018

Record Date for Voting 8/10/2018

Hearing Dates TBA

Nominations Close 5:00 PM 8/10/2018

Candidate Statement Due 8/10/2018

Ballot Information to Printer 8/13/2018

Copy of Mailing List 7/27/2018

Mail Ballot Package 8/27/2018
Candidate Video Agreement 

Due TBA

Candidate Video Filming TBA

Meet the Candidates August TBD

Replay Meet the Candidates TBA

Counting of Ballots by 
Inspectors of Election 9/28/2018

 Notice of Organizational/ 
Annual Meeting and Agenda 10/5/2018

10/9/2018
9:30 A.M.

BOARD ROOM

Organizational Board 
Meeting 10/9/2018

Annual Meeting Date

Ballots Due Back 9/26/2018

UNITED

3/7/2018 

Agenda Item # 11d
Page 3 of 3



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: March 13, 2018

FOR:  Board of Directors

SUBJECT: Entertain a Motion to Approve a Resolution Endorsing the Handyman 
Program and Setting Policy 

RECOMMENDATION 

Entertain a motion to approve a resolution to endorse and set policy for the 

Handyman Services Program (Attachment 1).  

BACKGROUND 

United Laguna Woods Mutual has endorsed the implementation of a handyman service 
program for its residents, as a pilot program.  The Mutual currently offers chargeable services 
for various appliance, electrical, carpentry, painting and plumbing work per Resolution 01-17-
104.  However, the Handyman Program is designed to help residents with a wide range of 
repairs and other help not covered by monthly assessments or chargeable services.   

Although handyman services are readily available to the residents from a third party vendor, an 
in-house handyman service may be more convenient and potentially more cost effective, as 
well as a more secured way of delivering the services to our residents. 

As directed by the Board, staff researched the handyman program provided at Rossmoor of 
Walnut Creek. Their program started off gradually using one dedicated handyman staff 
member to respond to requests. By the end of the first year, 800 manors were enrolled and 
this number has steadily increased since the program began, causing the number of 
handymen to be increased to 2.5.  

DISCUSSION 

The program will offer the handyman services listed on the Description of Services 
(Attachment 2) for a 12-month period at a cost of $200.  Residents who sign a Service 
Agreement, which is renewable annually, (Attachment 3) will receive upon request, up to three 
monthly visits by VMS staff, not to exceed two hours per visit. 

The Description of Services, Service Agreement, and frequently asked questions (FAQ) sheet 
(Attachment 4) will be listed on the Laguna Woods Village website.  A Handyman Services 
Program brochure (Attachment 5) will be displayed at all Clubhouses and at the concierge 
desk in the Community Center. 

Agenda Item # 12a
Page 1 of 11



United Laguna Hills Mutual 
Entertain a Motion to Approve a Resolution Endorsing the Handyman Program and Setting 
Policy 
March 13, 2018 
Page 2 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Net revenue or net expense for the program will be reflected in the Mutual Operating Fund. 

Prepared By: Patrick Cleary, Maintenance Operations Manager 

Reviewed By: Ernesto Munoz, P.E., Maintenance and Construction Director 
Betty Parker, Financial Services Director 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

Attachment 1 – Proposed Resolution 01-18-XX  
Attachment 2 – Description of Services  
Attachment 3 – Service Agreement 
Attachment 4 – FAQ Sheet 
Attachment 5 – Handyman Services Program Brochure 

Agenda Item # 12a
Page 2 of 11



ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION 01-18-XX

Handyman Services Program 

WHEREAS, the United Laguna Woods Mutual (Mutual) has a chargeable service policy 
for non-emergency maintenance repairs for specific original and standard components 
within the Mutual dwelling units;  

WHEREAS, a new Handyman Services Program has been designed to help residents 
with a wide range of repairs and provide other assistance around the home not covered 
by monthly assessments or chargeable services; and, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, April 10, 2018, the Board of Directors of this 
Corporation hereby approves the Handyman Services Program as defined by the 
Service Agreement (attached) to provide limited maintenance services to alteration and 
non-standard components, not currently covered by the Mutual; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER, participants will sign a Service Agreement and pay the $200 
annual fee; and, 

RESOLVED FURTHER, participants will receive up to 3 service calls per month, not to 
exceed 2 hours per service call, for items on the Board-approved Description of 
Services. 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that net revenue or net expense for the program will be 
reflected in the Mutual Operating Fund; and, 

RESOLVED FURTHER, the Board recognizes that costs incurred by this program may 
exceed revenue generated during the initial implementation period; and,  

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

MARCH initial notification
Should the Board endorse the proposed program, staff recommends that a 
motion be made and seconded to accept the resolution and allow discussion to 
ensure that the resolution reads to the satisfaction of the Board.  Staff then 
recommends that a Board Member postpone the resolution to the next available 
Board Meeting no less than 30-days from the postponement to comply with Civil 
Code §4360. 

Agenda Item # 12a
Page 3 of 11



this page intentionally left blank



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

Handyman Services Program – Description of Services 

 Fluorescent Tubes/Light Bulbs: Replace any light bulb in the manor including non-functioning 
appliance bulbs. Resident is responsible for supplying bulbs. Replace defective fluorescent ballast. 

 Lamps: Repair or replace defective switches, sockets, and wiring. Replace defective cords and plugs. 
Replace defective cord line dimmer switches. Assemble and test new lamps. 

 Alteration Light Fixtures: Raise, lower and install resident-supplied chandeliers. Repair or replace 
defective light sockets and ballasts. Repair wiring within the fixture. Install new resident-supplied light 
fixtures. 

 Other Alteration Electrical: Replace defective light switches and outlets. Replace defective GFI 
outlets. Reset tripped circuit breakers. Repair electrical wiring shorts within the box. Replace 
defective door bell, button and transformer. 

 Alteration Drains: Clear clogged drains within the unit including kitchen sink trap, garbage disposal, 
dishwasher air gap, bathroom sink trap, toilets, tub, and shower. 

 Alteration Plumbing: Repair or replace traps, pipes and hoses from the floor to the wall as needed. 
Repair or replace tub and basin stoppers. 

 Alteration Toilets: Replace defective flush valves, balls, and flappers. Replace seals as needed. 
Resolve stoppages in alteration toilets or caused by the resident. 

 Alteration Sinks, Kitchen and Bath: Replace leaking hoses and supply lines. Replace defective spray 
heads. Unplug, clean or replace drain traps. Repair or replace defective stoppers. Repair or replace 
defective pull rods. Remove trap to recover items lost in drain. 

 Alteration Tub and Showers: Repair or adjust tub and shower doors as needed. Clear clogged drains. 
Repair stopper. Replace shower head (resident-supplied). Reinstall fallen shower curtain. 

 Alteration Faucets: Repair faucets within the unit. Replace aerators, if needed. Replace handles 
(resident-supplied). 

 Alteration Garbage Disposals: Replace resident supplied disposal. Clear jammed disposals. Reset 
switch. Replace defective wall switch. Clean or replace air gap as needed. Repair or replace electrical 
cord. 

 Alteration or Upgraded Dishwashers: Remove object in tub. Repair interior parts as needed. Tighten 
counter attachment screws as needed. Repair leaking drain hose. 

 Vent Fans: Replace defective switch. Repair fan blade vibration. 
 Alteration Water Heaters: Adjust temperature. Inspect for leaks. Replace supply line washers as 

needed.  Reset tripped thermostat control.  Replace defective safety valve. Repair leaking drain 
valve. 

 Window and Deck Shades: Adjust pull string. Tighten loose brackets. Replace worn end brackets. 
Install (resident-supplied) shades. 

 Alteration Closet/Wardrobe doors: Adjust or reset doors. Lubricate doors as needed. Replace 
defective rollers and missing or defective floor glides. Adjust locking handles. Lubricate hinges as 
needed. 

 Closets: Replace broken alteration clothes pole and sockets. 

 
Agenda Item # 12a 

Page 4 of 11



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

 Alteration Sliding Glass Doors and Windows: Lubricate and adjust rollers. Replaced defective rollers. 
Adjust and lubricate lock. Replace defective lock. Adjust off track door. Replace fallen screens. 

 Alteration Sliding Screens: Adjust off track door. Lubricate as needed. Replace defective rollers. 
Adjust or replace latch. Reinsert loose screen in frame. 

 Drapery Rods: Lubricate pulley as needed. Replace defective draw cord. Replace defective cord 
tension device. Replace plastic hook eyelets as needed. Reinstall rod screws. Remove drapes for 
cleaning and reinstall. 

 Alteration or Personal Property Drawers: Repair or replace broken runners. Lubricate hinges as 
needed. Tighten loose screws. Lubricate or replace rollers as needed. Tighten loose pull knobs. 

 Alteration or Personal Property Cabinets: Tighten loose hinges. Lubricate and adjust hinges as 
needed. Replace defective hinges. Tighten loose pull knobs. 
The “Personal Services” section describes chore type services.  

The United Laguna Woods Mutual Handyman Service Program does not cover cleaning tasks of any 
kind, although you may use the service to help you access areas to make it easier for you to clean 
them (i.e. moving a heavy appliance to allow cleaning below or behind it.)  This program also does 
not cover landscaping or roofing services. 

Personal Services – Are intended to help residents with everyday chores that have become a burden. 
The resident will supply any necessary parts for personal services. Items covered include, but are not 
limited to: 

 Resident Assistance Equipment (all equipment supplied by resident): Install wood blocks under bed. 
Install raised toilet seat. Install toilet support/grab bars. Tighten loose shower grab bars. 

 Install vacuum cleaner bag 
 Remove or install table leaves 
 Open or close convertible couches 
 Turn mattress 
 Move lightweight furniture 
 Hang small lightweight shelves 
 Move or hang potted plants 
 Install paper towel hangers 
 Install cup hooks 
 Small carpentry jobs 
 Duplicate keys made 

Other tasks that take less than a half-hour will be considered on a negotiated basis. 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 5 of 11



ATTACHMENT 3 

Handyman Services Program 

(949) 597-4600 * ResidentServices@VMSinc.org 

 

UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL 

HANDYMAN SERVICES PROGRAM 
 

SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 

LENGTH OF CONTRACT 
This Agreement shall be effective for one full year from the date that payment for the program 
and this contract are received. 

 
COST 
The cost of the program is $200.00 per year for cooperative and condominium units. Please 
make your check payable to United Laguna Woods Mutual or ULWM. 

 
SERVICES 
The resident purchasing the service program is entitled to three (3) service calls per month for 
his/her manor for services listed on the Description of Services attached to this Agreement for the 
term of the Agreement. Services not listed on the Description of Services List excluded. 

 
For purposes of this Agreement a service call is one trip to a manor to perform services, provided 
such trip does not exceed two hours. Single trips shall be considered two service calls if they 
exceed two hours. If additional trips are needed to complete the services requested it will not count 
as another service call unless such additional trips cause the total service time to exceed the two 
hour limit. 

 
PARTS 
All parts required for services under this Agreement will be supplied by ULWM unless it states 
otherwise in the Description of Services. Parts required to be supplied by the resident may be 
purchased by the resident from VMS Warehouse. Parts are subject to availability. 

 
ULWM does not assume responsibility or liability for any damage or loss in any way related to the 
Resident’s alleged failure to obtain parts in a timely manner. 

 
APPOINTMENTS AND HOURS 
Services will be scheduled and services will be performed during regular business hours, Monday 
through Friday, 8:00 AM to 3:30 PM, excluding holidays. To request a service, a resident should 
call 949-597-4600 and reference the Handyman Services Program. 

 

Services requested by the resident after hours or on holidays will not be covered by this 
Agreement regardless of whether they fall within the scope of services set forth on the 
Description of Services list. 

 
ULWM does not assume responsibility or liability for any damage or loss in any way related to VMS’s 
alleged untimely response to any “emergency” or other request for service. 
 
TRANSFER TO NEW OWNER 
A resident’s rights and obligations under this Agreement shall be transferred during the term of the 
Agreement to any individual that subsequently purchases his/her manor. This transfer shall occur 
automatically upon change in ownership and at no charge. Under no circumstances may a 
resident’s rights under this Agreement be transferred to a different address than that under which it 
was purchased. 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 6 of 11



ATTACHMENT 3 

Handyman Services Program 

(949) 597-4600 * ResidentServices@VMSinc.org 

 
 
 
EXCLUSIONS AND LIMITATIONS 
ULWM will not in any way pay for any services performed by anyone other than VMS staff, unless 
ordered, or, authorized in writing, by ULWM. This Agreement shall not apply to any appliance or 
electronic product covered by an express warranty. ULWM reserves the right to refuse to 
service/repair any appliance or other component which in its sole discretion is too unsafe, old or 
worn to warrant further repair and/or service. This Agreement is intended to cover handyman 
service necessitated as a result of ordinary wear and tear and does not apply to repairs or 
services necessitated by such intervening causes as wars, floods, water, water damage, 
lightening, wind and windstorms, earthquakes, fires, smoke, acts of God, thefts, riots, vandalism, 
or misuse or abuse of a component. 

 
LIMIT OF LIABILITY AND DAMAGES 
ULWM’s entire liability for any claim related to services provided under this Agreement shall 
in no event exceed the purchase price of the service package.  In addition, ULWM will not be 
responsible for any general or consequential damages arising out of or in any way related to 
services provided under this Agreement. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS 
A resident agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless ULWM and VMS for any claim, 
injury or harm suffered by an employee or agent of VMS providing services under this 
Agreement if such claim, injury or harm is due in whole or in part to the negligent acts or 
omissions of resident. 

 
CANCELLATION 
This Agreement may be cancelled within 30-days of receipt. Requests for cancellation shall be 
made in writing and sent to the Maintenance Operations Manager at P.O. Box 2220, Laguna Woods, 
CA 92654-2220. Upon receipt of a timely notice of cancellation, a resident shall receive a full refund 
of the costs for the service program provided no services have been rendered under the 
Agreement. If services have been rendered at the time of cancellation, a resident shall be entitled 
to a pro rata refund based on the retail value of services performed. 

 

Attachment (new enrollees): Description of Services 
 

BE SURE TO INCLUDE THIS CONTRACT, SIGNED, 
ALONG WITH YOUR CHECK MADE PAYABLE TO ULWM 

 
 

_________________________________  ____________________________  ____________ 
Resident Signature    Manor Address    Date 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Print Resident Name  
 
 
_________________________________  ____________ 
ULWM Agent Signature    Date 

 
 

FOR SERVICE REQUESTS CALL 949-597-4600 
WHITE COPY: ULWM, YELLOW COPY: RESIDENT 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 7 of 11



ATTACHMENT 4 

FAQ SHEET 

 

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS: 
Below are some frequently asked questions and answers about the Handyman Services 
Program.   

Q: How do I arrange for handyman service at my manor? 
A: Call (949) 597-4600. A representative will review your request and create a service 
order.  Staff will then call you to schedule an appointment at a time that is convenient for 
you. 

Q: What is the cost for service? 
A: The rate is $200 for a 12-month period.  

Q: Can I pay with a credit card? 
A: Yes.  Payment may be made by credit or personal check.  

Q: How do I join? 
A: By signing a Service Agreement and submitting payment. This can be done a few 
different ways.  

1) Visit us in person at Resident Services in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center, 
where a representative can walk you through the process.  

2) Call Resident Services at (949) 597-4600. You will be sent the necessary documents to 
complete and return along with payment.  

3) Print out a copy of the Service Agreement from the website, fill it out and send it with a 
check for the correct amount to ULWM to P.O. Box 2220, Laguna Woods, CA 92654-2220, 
Attn: Handyman Service. 

Q: How many requests can I make for service? 
A: You are allowed three service calls per month with each call allowing up to two hours of 
work. 

Q: Is there a charge per service call? 
A: No. The only cost to you is the yearly fee. Parts that are not covered by the Service 
Agreement will need to be provided by the resident. 

Q: When is the service offered? 
A: Appointments are available Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m., 
excluding holidays. You may call for service during normal business hours. 

Q: If I sell my unit and/or move to another manor within Laguna Woods Village, does 
the Service Agreement move with me? 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 8 of 11



ATTACHMENT 4 

A: No. The Service Agreement is tied to the manor. The new buyer/resident will retain the 
Service Agreement benefit. 

Q: Can I cancel my Service Agreement? 
A: Yes. You may cancel within the first 30 days of signing and receive a full refund if the 
service has not been used. If the service has been used, you are entitled to a pro-rated 
refund based on the retail value of services performed. 

Q: What is covered by the Service Agreement? 
A: Many items are covered. See details of items covered on the Description of Services list. 

Q: Will the coverage currently provided by United Laguna Woods Mutual change? 
A: No. Maintenance policies for your Mutual remain the same. 

 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 9 of 11



Ca
ll 

Re
si

de
nt

 S
er

vi
ce

s a
t 

94
9-

59
7-

46
00

 a
nd

 te
ll 

th
em

 y
ou

 a
re

ca
lli

ng
 a

bo
ut

 “
H

an
dy

m
an

 S
er

vi
ce

s”
 o

r 
vi

si
t w

w
w

.la
gu

na
w

oo
ds

vi
lla

ge
.c

om
 

an
d 

cl
ic

k 
on

 “
H

an
dy

m
an

 S
er

vi
ce

s”
.

RE
SI

DE
N

T 
SE

RV
IC

ES
TH

E 
SE

RV
IC

E

94
9-

59
7-

46
00

w
w

w
.la

gu
na

w
oo

ds
vi

lla
ge

.c
om

H
an

dy
m

an
 S

er
vi

ce
s

 S
ER

V
IC

ES

Th
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

is
 o

ff
er

ed
 a

t a
n 

an
nu

al
 c

os
t o

f $
20

0.

Th
e 

H
an

dy
m

an
 S

er
vi

ce
s p

ro
vi

de
s 

as
si

st
an

ce
 to

 re
si

de
nt

s i
n 

a 
va

rie
ty

 o
f 

si
tu

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 c

ov
er

s a
 w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 

of
 re

pa
irs

.

In
co

m
e 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
fr

om
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 w

ill
 b

e 

us
ed

 to
 o

ffs
et

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
.

Th
e 

st
af

f p
ro

vi
di

ng
 se

rv
ic

e 
ha

s d
ec

ad
es

 o
f 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
. V

M
S 

st
af

f a
re

 

fr
ie

nd
ly

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
th

or
ou

gh
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
of

 

th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 a

nd
 w

ha
t i

s c
ov

er
ed

 u
nd

er
 th

e 

H
an

dy
m

an
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

Se
rv

ic
e 

is
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

re
gu

la
r b

us
in

es
s 

ho
ur

s,
 M

on
da

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
Fr

id
ay

, 8
 a

.m
.

to
 3

:3
0 

p.
m

., 
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

ho
lid

ay
s.

Fr
ie

nd
ly

 a
nd

 E
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 S
ta

ff

DR
AF

T

AT
TA

CH
M

EN
T 

5

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 10 of 11



W
H

AT
 IS

 C
O

VE
RE

D?

By
 si

gn
in

g 
a 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ag
re

em
en

t a
nd

 
su

bm
itt

in
g 

pa
ym

en
t. 

Th
is

 c
an

 b
e 

do
ne

 a
 

fe
w

 d
iff

er
en

t w
ay

s:
 

Sl
id

in
g 

Gl
as

s D
oo

rs
 &

 
W

in
do

w
s

Sl
id

in
g 

Sc
re

en
s 

Te
le

vi
si

on
 M

ou
nt

in
g 

T o
ile

ts
Tu

b 
an

d 
Sh

ow
er

s
Ve

nt
 F

an
s

W
at

er
 H

ea
te

rs
W

in
do

w
 a

nd
 D

ec
k 

Sh
ad

es
Ch

an
ge

 F
ilt

er
s 

Fl
ip

 M
at

tr
es

se
s

H
an

g 
Pi

ct
ur

es
In

st
al

l B
at

te
rie

s
In

st
al

l V
ac

uu
m

 C
le

an
er

 B
ag

M
ov

e 
Fu

rn
itu

re
 o

r B
ox

es
 

M
ov

e 
or

 H
an

g 
Po

tt
ed

 P
la

nt
s

Sm
al

l C
ar

pe
nt

ry
 J

ob
s

As
se

m
bl

e 
Fu

rn
itu

re
Ca

bi
ne

ts
Cl

os
et

 D
oo

rs
Cl

os
et

s
Di

sh
w

as
he

rs
Dr

ai
ns

Dr
ap

er
y 

Ro
ds

Dr
aw

er
s

Fa
uc

et
s

Fl
uo

re
sc

en
t T

ub
es

 &
 L

ig
ht

 B
ul

bs
 

Ga
rb

ag
e 

Di
sp

os
al

s
Ge

ne
ra

l E
le

ct
ric

al
Ge

ne
ra

l P
lu

m
bi

ng
La

m
ps

Li
gh

t F
ix

tu
re

s
Re

si
de

nt
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t 

Si
nk

s (
Ki

tc
he

n 
an

d 
Ba

th
)

Be
lo

w
 is

 a
 su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

ffe
re

d.
  C

on
ta

ct
 R

es
id

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

 o
r v

is
it 

w
w

w
.L

ag
un

aW
oo

ds
Vi

lla
ge

.c
om

 fo
r a

 fu
ll 

lis
t o

f s
er

vi
ce

s.

1)
Vi

si
t u

s i
n 

pe
rs

on
 a

t R
es

id
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s.

2)
Ca

ll 
Re

si
de

nt
 S

er
vi

ce
s a

t (
94

9)
 5

97
-4

60
0.

 Y
ou

    
w

ill
 b

e 
se

nt
 th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 to

co
m

pl
et

e 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

 w
ith

 y
ou

r c
he

ck
.

3)
Pr

in
t o

ut
 a

 c
op

y 
of

 th
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ag
re

em
en

t
fr

om
 th

e 
w

eb
si

te
, f

ill
 it

 o
ut

 a
nd

 re
tu

rn
 it

 w
ith

a 
ch

ec
k 

fo
r t

he
 c

or
re

ct
 a

m
ou

nt
.

SE
RV

IC
ES

(A
lt

er
at

io
ns

 &
 N

on
-S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Co
m

po
ne

nt
s)

Th
e 

H
an

dy
m

an
 S

er
vi

ce
s P

ro
gr

am
 is

 
de

si
gn

ed
 to

 h
el

p 
re

si
de

nt
s w

ith
 re

pa
ir 

is
su

es
 

th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 c
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

M
ut

ua
l. 

 V
M

S 
st

af
f  

w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 h

el
p 

de
te

rm
in

e 
if 

yo
ur

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 re

qu
es

t i
s c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
M

ut
ua

l o
r t

he
 H

an
dy

m
an

 S
er

vi
ce

s P
ro

gr
am

. 
Al

l m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

re
 c

ov
er

ed
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 
un

le
ss

 st
at

ed
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
in

 th
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ag
re

em
en

t. 
Re

si
de

nt
s e

nr
ol

le
d 

in
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 a

re
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

 th
re

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ca

lls
 

pe
r m

on
th

, n
ot

 to
 e

xc
ee

d 
tw

o 
ho

ur
s p

er
 

se
rv

ic
e 

ca
ll.

H
O

W
 D

O
 Y

O
U

 J
O

IN
?

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 11 of 11



Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 1 of 9

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: February 13, 2018 

FOR: Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Establish a Policy for Director Access to Corporate Books and Records 

RECOMMENDATION 

Entertain a Motion to Approve a Policy Establishing Director Access to Corporate Books and 
Records. 

BACKGROUND 

On January 29, the Governing Documents Committee discussed establishing a Policy 
governing Director access to corporate books, records and documents. The Committee 
recommended changes to the draft Policy created by Counsel. With the amendments, the 
Committee recommended approval and scheduling on the next Board agenda. 

DISCUSSION 

The Policy (ATT 1) is intended to provide clear guidelines and procedures for access to certain 
United records. Current Directors serving on the Board have the “absolute right” to inspect 
and copy all books, records and documents of every kind and to inspect the physical 
properties of United, provided same is done at a reasonable time (Corporations Code § 8334). 
However, the manner and extent of the director’s inspection and copying rights may be subject 
to reasonable regulations based on balancing the interests of United and its Members, 
including privacy and other Constitutional rights, as well as those rights of the director to 
inspect corporate documents on just and proper conditions (Corporations Code § 8336). 

The Policy specifies that a written request is necessary, indicating which documents are 
desired. There is a limitation on frequency; as such requests cost United, borne by Members, 
time and money by way of administrative time to assemble the records, as well as legal costs 
that may be incurred to ensure compliance and to ensure privacy rights are not infringed upon. 

Physical inspection of records is permitted, as well as provision of electronic copies, in a non- 
editable format (e.g., PDF), without the Board reviewing the request. The Policy further 
identifies a process resolution for disputes if a Director is denied access. A list of books, 
documents, records and other information that is not subject to inspection, copying or review is 
listed in the Policy and includes such items as ballots and personnel information. Finally, the 
Policy identifies a list of documents that are not accessible where an actual or potential conflict 
of interest exists. 

Attachment 3 is a Director Request for Access to Corporate Books, Records and Documents 
application. 



Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 2 of 9

United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Access to Corporate Books, Records and Documents 
February 13, 2018 
Page 2 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

None 

Prepared By: Lori Moss, Community Manager 

Reviewed By: Betty Parker, Financial Services Director 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
ATT 1: Policy 
ATT 2: Resolution 
ATT 3:  Application 



Page 1 of 5
Agenda Item # 12b 

Page 3 of 9

UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL 

POLICY GOVERNING DIRECTOR ACCESS TO 
CORPORATE BOOKS, RECORDS AND DOCUMENTS 

The following policy has been duly adopted by the Board of Directors and is in effect as 
of , 2018. United Laguna Woods Mutual (“United”) requires clear 
guidelines for director’s handling of corporate records and information, i.e., to keep it 
confidential, unless disclosure is approved by the Board (majority), or law, as 
determined by legal counsel, and to identify those records requiring special handling 
due to their sensitive, confidential nature. 

The following policies are intended to provide clear guidelines and procedures for 
access to certain United records. Current directors serving on the Board have the 
“absolute right” to inspect and copy all books, records and documents of every kind and 
to inspect the physical properties of United, provided same is done at a reasonable 
time. (Corporations Code § 8334.) However, the manner and extent of the director’s 
inspection and copying rights may be subject to reasonable regulations based on 
balancing the interests of United and its Members, including privacy and other 
Constitutional rights, as well as those rights of the director to inspect corporate 
documents on just and proper conditions. (Chantiles v. Lake Forest II Homeowners 
Association, 37 Cal.App.4th 914 (1995); Corporations Code § 8336.) 

These policies and procedures work to uphold the rights of directors while protecting 
United from liability claims that may arise from the review, copying and dissemination of 
sensitive, corporate records. Without established policies and procedures there exists 
significant opportunity for conflict amongst and between directors, employees and 
shareholders. 

NOTICE: IMPROPER OR UNAUTHORIZED (ABSENT BOARD APPROVAL) 
DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE BOOKS AND RECORDS OF 
UNITED COULD RESULT IN PERSONAL LIABILITY TO THE DIRECTOR, AS WELL 
AS TO UNITED, AND WILL SUBJECT THE OFFENDING DIRECTOR TO FORMAL 
DISCIPLINARY ACTION BY THE BOARD. 

I. Director  Access  to  Books,  Documents,  Records  or  Other  Information 
Available to Directors Pursuant to their Inspection Rights: 

Although directors have the “absolute right” to inspect and copy all books, records and 
documents of every kind and to inspect the physical properties of United, same must be 



Page 2 of 5
Agenda Item # 12b 

Page 4 of 9

done at a reasonable time. The manner and extent of the director’s inspection and 
copying rights may be subject to reasonable regulations based on balancing the 
interests of United and its Members, including privacy and other Constitutional rights, as 
well as those rights of the director to inspect corporate documents on just and proper 
conditions. Following are reasonable guidelines and requirements for directors to follow 
when exercising their right to inspect: 

A. Written   Request   to   Inspect   Books,   Documents,   Records   or   Other 
Information 

Upon written request to inspect corporate books, documents, records or other 
information, directors will be afforded the opportunity to inspect the requested corporate 
books, records or other documents, subject to the limitations of Article II below. 
Corporate records and documents are maintained at the Administration Building. 
Directors must make an appointment with staff (preferably at least five business days in 
advance of his or her request to inspect corporate books and/or records), which 
appointment may be made only during normal business hours, Monday through Friday 
from 9 am to 5 pm. 

B. Director  Physical  Inspection  of  Books,  Documents,  Records  or  Other 
Information 

Subject to the inspection limitations set forth in Article II below, directors may inspect 
the books and records and/or the physical property of United upon written request, and 
access to same will be provided within a reasonable amount of time. Appointments with 
staff may be made (preferably not less than five business days following the director’s 
request for inspection), provided a determination has been made that the director is 
entitled to access the requested book, record, document or other information. The 
requesting director shall not be entitled to inspect books, documents, records or other 
information that may create an invasion of privacy and/or conflicts of interest as set forth 
herein. 

Directors shall not be permitted to copy books, documents, records or other information 
of United. Notwithstanding, directors may submit, in writing, his or her reasoning, 
purpose and need for copying the document or record, which shall be reasonably 
related to the director’s interest and role as a director of United. Director shall also 
agree, in writing, to not disclose, disseminate, or otherwise make available the copied 
book, record or other document to any third person, and shall indemnify and hold 
harmless United and its Board, Staff, and officers from any and all claims, damages and 
liability arising out of or related to the copying of the book, documents, record or other 
information. A majority of the Board shall, in its sole discretion, determine whether the 
requesting director’s purpose, need and reasoning for copying the book, record or other 
document is reasonably related to his or her interest and role as a director and whether 
the need to copy same is reasonable or necessary; the requesting director shall recuse 
him- or herself from said discussion and vote. 



Page 3 of 5
Agenda Item # 12b 

Page 5 of 9

C. Limitations  on  Director’s  Frequency  of  Requests  to  Inspect  Books, 
Documents, Records or Other Information 

The purpose of this policy is not to limit director access to records he or she is entitled 
to view; rather, this policy is intended to preserve privacy rights, prevent conflicts of 
interest and minimize exposure to liability in connection with access to United books, 
records, document and other information. 

While directors certainly have the right to request to inspect corporate books, records or 
other documents, and United will fully comply with its obligations under the law related 
thereto, such requests cost United time and money by way of Staff taking the time to 
assemble the records and to make same available to the director, as well as any legal 
costs that may be incurred to ensure compliance and to ensure privacy rights are not 
infringed upon. These costs are borne by all Members. 

To that end, directors shall not be permitted access to corporate books, records, 
documents or other information in a frequency that causes an undue burden on staff or 
the Board, as determined by a majority of the Board. Any and all requests limited by 
Article II below shall constitute a request for purposes of this limitation on frequency of 
requests for access to corporate books, records, documents or other information. 

D. Disclosure to Board of Directors a Request to Inspect Books, Documents, 
Records or Other Information 

Upon written request of a director to access corporate books, records or other 
documents, the United Board President shall review the request and determine whether 
said request may be limited as provided in Article II below. Should the President 
determine that the request may invade privacy rights and/or create a conflict of interest 
(whether potentially or actually), the President may deny the request. 

Any and all written requests for access to United books, records, documents or other 
information shall be disclosed to the United Board of Directors prior to the appointment 
date to access same as outlined in paragraphs A and B above. 

Should the requesting director request to copy books, records or other documents, the 
Board, excluding the interested Director, shall review the written reasoning, need and 
purpose to copy same, and shall vote on whether this purpose is reasonably related to 
the director’s interest and role as a director serving on the Board. Notwithstanding, the 
requesting director may be provided electronic copies, in a non-editable format (e.g., 
PDF), without the Board reviewing the request. 



Page 4 of 5
Agenda Item # 12b 

Page 6 of 9

E. Resolution   Disputes   Regarding   a   Director’s   Inspection   of   Books, 
Documents, Records or Other Information 

Should the director’s request for access be denied according to paragraph D above, the 
director may appeal to the entire Board. The Board of Directors shall review the request 
and determine whether same may be limited by Article II herein below. A majority of the 
Board shall, in its sole discretion, determine whether the request will be limited as set 
forth herein; the requesting director shall recuse him or herself from said discussions 
and vote. 

II. Books,   Documents,   Records   or   Other   Information   Not   Subject   to
Inspection, Copying or Review by Directors: 

The following books, documents, records or other information shall not be subject to 
inspection or copying by directors based on the potential for invasion of privacy and/or 
conflicts of interest. Directors owe United certain fiduciary duties, including, but not 
limited to, the duty of confidentiality, the duty of loyalty and the duty of due care. 
Directors must act in good faith, in the best interests of United, and with such care, 
including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would use 
under similar circumstances. (Corporations Code § 7231.) 

A. Privacy*: Books, Records, Documents and Other Information Not Subject
to Inspection. 

There is a legally recognized privacy interest in precluding the dissemination or misuse 
of sensitive and confidential information (“informational privacy”). Informational privacy 
is the core value furthered by the California Constitution. (Cal. Const. Art. I, § 1.) A 
particular class of information is private when well-established social norms recognize 
the need to maximize individual control over its dissemination and use to prevent 
unjustified embarrassment or indignity. 

Therefore, any and all books, records, documents or other information containing 
information that,  if  disclosed, would infringe, or has the potential to infringe, on a 
Member’s privacy rights, shall not be subject to inspection or copying by a director, 
including, without limitation: 

(1) Ballots or any other documents with information revealing the identity of a 
voter and how their cast their vote; and 

(2) Personnel information, including employment records (e.g. performance 
evaluations, payroll records, etc.). However, personnel information is subject to review 
by the Board of Directors in connection with proper United business, but such records 
shall be handled by the Board (majority) and with due care. 



Page 5 of 5
Agenda Item # 12b 

Page 7 of 9

B. Conflict of Interest (Potential or Actual)*: Books, Records, Documents and
Other Information Not Subject to Inspection. 

Directors owe United a duty of undivided loyalty, and may not make decisions for United 
that benefit their own interests at the expense of United and/or its Members. (Raven’s 
Cove Townhomes, Inc. v. Knuppe Development Co., 114 Cal. App. 3d 783 (1981).) The 
duty of loyalty involves not only the duty to avoid conflicts of interest, but requires full 
disclosure of any interests potentially adverse to United. A director has the duty to serve 
the interests of all Members. To that end, where an actual or potential conflict of interest 
exists, the director shall not be entitled to inspect or copy the following books, records, 
documents or other information relating to, arising out of, or in connection with: 

(1) Litigation or other formal action (criminal, civil, administrative, etc.) against 
United in which the director (including his/her family members, guests, tenants, agents, 
or invitees) is involved as an opponent. This information is protected by, among other 
privileges, the attorney-client and work product privileges; 

(2) The personal or financial interests of the director, including his/her family 
members, guests, tenants, agents, or invitees; 

(3) The director’s stated or implied (through the director’s conduct) intent to 
disclose (without authorization of the Board) or to otherwise violate his/her fiduciary 
duties; and 

(4) Neighbor to neighbor disputes, including, but not limited to, sensitive 
records pertaining to a director’s neighbor, when such director is involved in a neighbor 
to neighbor dispute (e.g., architectural applications, disciplinary hearing notices, 
violation notices, nuisance claims, or other letters to or from the neighboring Member). 

*The records set forth herein shall not be considered an exhaustive list, and a director
may be precluded from inspecting or copying certain books, records or documents that 
infringe (or have the potential to infringe) on privacy rights or where the director has a 
potential or actual conflict of interest. 



this page intentionally left blank



Agenda Item # 12b 
Page 8 of 9

RESOLUTION 01-18-XX 

Director Access to Corporate Books, Records and Documents 

WHEREAS, United Laguna Woods Mutual (“United”) is a non-profit mutual benefit 
corporation, existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California, organized 
for the purpose of providing its Members with housing on a cooperative non-profit basis 
pursuant to the provisions set forth in its Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws; 

WHEREAS, United, through its volunteer Board of Directors (“Board”), is responsible for 
management, maintenance and administration of a residential stock cooperative 
common interest development under United’s governing documents (which include, 
without limitation, the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, Occupancy Agreement, 
operating rules and Board resolutions), which grant United the authority to manage and 
govern the affairs of the properties within United; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Corporations Code Section 8334, every director shall have the 
absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect and copy all books, records and 
documents of every kind and to inspect the physical properties of the corporation of 
which such person is a director; 

WHEREAS, a director’s general right of inspection may be preempted by the right of 
privacy guaranteed under the California Constitution, may be subordinate to statutes 
specifically protecting confidential, private, or privileged records, and California courts 
have also acknowledged a constitutional right to privacy held by members of HOA’s in 
their voting decisions; 

WHEREAS, a director’s duty of loyalty involves not only the duty to avoid conflicts of 
interest, but requires full disclosure of any interests potentially adverse to United; and, 

WHEREAS, United desires to adopt clear guidelines and procedures for director access 
to United records, and directors’ handling of those records, while protecting United from 
liability claims arising from the review, copying and dissemination of corporate records.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, March 13, 2018, that the Board of Directors of 
this Corporation hereby adopts a Policy Governing Directors Access to Corporate 
Books, Records and Documents and other governing documents regarding access to 
United’s records; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution. 



this page intentionally left blank



Director Request for Access to Corporate Books, Records And Documents 

Current directors serving on the Board of Directors of United Laguna Woods Mutual have the “absolute right” to 
inspect and copy all books, records and documents of every kind and to inspect the physical properties of 
United Laguna Woods Mutual (“Corporation”), provided same is done at a reasonable time. (Corporations Code 
§ 8334.) However, the manner and extent of the director’s inspection and copying rights may be subject to
reasonable regulations based on balancing the interests of the Corporation and its Members and employees, 
including privacy and other Constitutional rights, as well as those rights of the director to inspect Corporation 
documents on just and proper conditions, including avoiding conflicts of interest. (Chantiles v. Lake Forest II 
Homeowners Association, 37 Cal.App.4th 914 (1995); Corporations Code § 8336.) 

I request the following: 

Review/inspect corporate books, records and documents 

Copy corporate books, records and documents 

Records/documents from date(s): (from) , 20 (to) , 20 

The records/documents that I request are: 

My purpose in asking to inspect/copy the foregoing records/documents is: 

Director Name: 

Address:  

Mailing Address (If address is different): 

Telephone Number: 

I understand that the Corporation may request clarification of my request. Such clarification may require 
dialogue between the Staff me, which may impact the date on which my request becomes active. I understand 
that it is up to me to arrange for a copy service if I want copies, or I may request that the Staff make copies. 

I acknowledge and agree the corporate books, records and documents, and any information from them, may 
not be sold, used for a commercial purpose, or used for any other purpose not reasonably related to my 
interests as a Director of the Corporation. I agree to keep the corporate books, records and documents, and 
any information from them confidential and agree to return the corporate books, records and documents to 
the Staff at the end of my term as a director. 

I understand that legal action may be brought against me for injunctive relief and for actual damages to the 
Corporation caused by a violation of the foregoing. 

Signature:  

Agenda Item #12b
Page 9 of 9



this page intentionally left blank



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: March 13, 2018 
FOR: United Board of Directors  
SUBJECT: United Committee Appointments 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a Resolution of the Committee Appointments for Board Committees. 

BACKGROUND 

Changes to the Board Committees occurred due to requests from the Board members. 

DISCUSSION 

The United Board Committee Assignments (Attachments 1) have been updated. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

None 

Prepared By: Cheryl Silva, Assistant Corporate Secretary 

Reviewed By: Brad Hudson, CEO 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1: United Board and GRF Appointments Resolutions 

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 1 of 5



this page intentionally left blank



RESOLUTION 01-18- 
United Laguna Woods Mutual Committee Appointments 

RESOLVED, January 9, 2018, that the following persons are hereby 
appointed to serve the Corporation in the following capacities: 

Architectural Control and Standards Committee 
Janey Dorrell, Chair 
Don Tibbetts, Co-Chair 
Cash Achrekar 
Pat English 
Gary Morrison 
Non-Voting Advisers: Michael Mehrain, Kay Anderson, Walter Ridley, Ken 
Deepe 

Communications Committee 
Maggie Blackwell, Chair 
Juanita Skillman - Alternate 

Executive Members Hearing Committee 
Juanita Skillman, Chair
Janey Dorrell, Co-Chair 
Cash Achrekar 

Finance Committee 
Gary Morrison, Chair 
Manuel Armendariz 
Pat English 
Juanita Skillman 
Non-voting Adviser: Alan Dickenson 

Governing Documents Review Committee 
Juanita Skillman, Chair 
Maggie Blackwell, Co-Chair 
Gary Morrison 
Non-voting Advisers: Bevan Strom, Mary Stone 

Laguna Woods Village Traffic Hearings 
Cash Achrekar, Rotating Chair 

Landscape Committee
Maggie Blackwell, Chair
Manuel Armendariz
Janey Dorrell

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 2 of 5



Landscape Committee (continue)
Non-Voting Adviser: Pamela Grunke 

Maintenance and Construction Committee 
Don Tibbetts, Chair 
Janey Dorrell 
Pat English 
Gary Morrison 
Non-voting Adviser: Del Ng, Jack Bassler 

New Resident Orientation 
Per Rotation List 

Resident Advisory Committee 
Don Tibbetts, Chair 
Cash Achrekar, Co-Chair 
Juanita Skillman
Non-voting Advisers: Kay Anderson, Nancy Lannon 

United Delegate to the Village Energy Committee 
Juanita Skillman

RESOLVED FURTHER Resolution 01-18-12, adopted January 9, 2018, 
is hereby superseded and canceled. 

RESOLVED FURTHER the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized, on behalf of the Corporation, to carry out this 
resolution. 

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 3 of 5



RESOLUTION 01-18-XX 
Golden Rain Foundation Committee Appointments 

RESOLVED, November 14, 2017, that in compliance with Article 7, Section 7.3 
of the Golden Rain Foundation Bylaws, adopted September 29, 2014, the 
following persons are hereby appointed to serve on the committees of the 
Golden Rain Foundation: 

Business Planning 
Gary Morrison 

 Juanita Skillman 

Community Activities 
Janey Dorrell 

 Juanita Skillman 

Finance  
Gary Morrison 
Juanita Skillman 

Landscape Committee 
Manuel Armendariz 
Maggie Blackwell 

Maintenance & Construction 
Don Tibbetts 
Gary Morrison

Media and Communications Committee 
Maggie Blackwell 
Juanita Skillman 

Mobility and Vehicles Committee 
Cash Achrekar 
Reza Bastani 

PAC Task Force 
Juanita Skillman 
Don Tibbetts

Security and Community Access 
 Pat English  
 Don Tibbetts 

Town Hall Meetings 
As Needed 

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 4 of 5



this page intentionally left blank

Agenda Item # 13a
Page 5 of 5



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Maintenance & Construction Committee 
February 28, 2018 

ENDORSEMENT (to United Board) 

Electrical Use Reimbursement Policy Revisions 

Ernesto Munoz briefly discussed the current policy and the process for electrical 
use reimbursements from moisture intrusion events. 

In order to reimburse residents for the excess electricity caused by the dry down 
equipment used during a moisture intrusion event, a time consuming and labor-
intensive process must be followed. This process results in a significant amount 
of staff and resident coordination, paperwork, and calculations to arrive at what is 
typically a very small amount of reimbursement to the resident.    

The reimbursements  can take up to 3 months to process due to the number of 
requests received from both Mutuals, staff’s workload, and the coordination with 
the resident to secure their utility billing information for the period of time in 
question, which is required in order to perform the necessary reimbursement 
calculations. This long protracted process often causes significant frustration to 
the resident who is waiting for a reimbursement.  Residents constantly call 
Resident Services and other staff members seeking updates and a timeframe for 
their reimbursement. 

During the 2016 and 2017 fiscal years, the average cost to the Mutual for staff 
time to process the electrical use reimbursements under the current policy 
amounted to $158.00 per reimbursement, based on 3.5 hours of staff time for 
preparation, review of each reimbursement and approval of each check request.  
The proposed process will reduce the amount of staff time required for each 
request from 3.5 hours to just 30 minutes. 

A motion was made to recommend the Board approve a revised Electricity 
Usage Reimbursement Policy and Resolution which will offer a standard 
reimbursement rate of $32.00 per room, for excess electricity used during 
moisture intrusion events where dry-down of the property is required. 

By a vote of 4/1/0 (Director Bastani opposed), the motion carried. 

Agenda Item # 13b
Page 1 of 4



this page intentionally left blank



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: February 28, 2018

FOR:  Maintenance and Construction Committee

SUBJECT: Electrical Use Reimbursement Policy Revisions 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a revised Electricity Usage Reimbursement Policy and Resolution which will offer a 
standard reimbursement rate on a per room basis, for excess electricity used during moisture 
intrusion events where dry-down of the property is required (Attachment 1).   

BACKGROUND 

The current Electricity Usage Reimbursement Policy (Resolution 01-10-268) adopted 
December 14, 2010 authorizes staff to process reimbursements to members for electricity 
consumption related to the restoration of manors as a result of moisture intrusion events as 
well as for excess electricity consumed due to hot water supply line leaks. 

Currently, for moisture-intrusion events where dry-down equipment such as dehumidifiers and 
air blowers are required, the Mutual reimburses the resident for electricity used in the dry down 
of property, based on an established daily rate for each type of equipment extrapolated for the 
number of days each type of equipment is in place, as verified by the vendor providing dry 
down services. 

DISCUSSION 

In order to reimburse residents for the excess electricity caused by the dry down equipment 
used during a moisture intrusion event, a time consuming and labor-intensive process must be 
followed. This process results in a significant amount of staff and resident coordination, 
paperwork, and calculations to arrive at what is typically a very small amount of reimbursement 
to the resident.   The reimbursements  can take up to 3 months to process due to the number 
of requests received from both Mutuals, staff’s workload, and the coordination with the resident 
to secure their utility billing information for the period of time in question, which is required in 
order to perform the necessary reimbursement calculations. This long protracted process often 
causes significant frustration to the resident who is waiting for a reimbursement.  Residents 
constantly call Resident Services and other staff members seeking updates and a timeframe 
for their reimbursement. 

In fiscal years 2016 and 2017, there were 31 manor owners who received an electrical use 
reimbursement.  The average electrical use reimbursement processed for dry down of property 
amounted to $47.00 per manor. The reimbursements issued ranged from $8.44 to $151.28. 

Agenda Item # 13b
Page 2 of 4



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Electrical Use Reimbursement Policy Revisions 
February 28, 2018 
Page 2 

During the 2016 and 2017 fiscal years, the average cost to the Mutual for staff time to process 
the electrical use reimbursements under the current policy amounted to $158.00 per 
reimbursement, based on 3.5 hours of staff time for preparation, review of each reimbursement 
and approval of each check request.   

The average total cost of each reimbursement amounts to a Mutual expense of $205.00 which 
includes the costs of staff time and the average reimbursement of $47.00 to the resident, 
resulting in an inefficient process.  

Staff recommends establishing a standard reimbursable rate based on the number of rooms 
within a manor requiring dry down services, as determined during the restoration process. The 
majority of dry downs occur in only one room.  However, there have been instances where 
several rooms in a manor required the use of dry down equipment. 

The proposed change to the existing Resolution will require the Mutual to reimburse for 
electricity used in the dry down of property, for a moisture event, based on a flat rate 
reimbursement in the amount of $32.00 for each room. This rate is based on the average cost 
of dry down services divided by the numbers of rooms in the manor.  The proposed policy 
change will lessen the financial burden to the Mutual to provide electrical use reimbursements 
and will expedite the reimbursement return time to the member from 8-12 weeks to 2-3 weeks 
by (1) eliminating the requirement that vendor invoices be used to certify the dry down services 
rendered, and (2) by  eliminating the requirement that a detailed billing statement be submitted 
by the member for a precise reimbursable amount to be calculated based on kilowatt usage 
and electricity tier rates. The proposed process will also reduce the amount of staff time 
required for each request from 3.5 hours to just 30 minutes.  

The process for reimbursing the electric cost associated with hot water supply leaks (under 
slab leaks) will remain unchanged as the number of reimbursements processed annually is 
very small.   

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Under the current established policy, the approximate cost to the Mutual for providing the 
above referenced service is $158.00 with an average reimbursement to the member of $32.00 
per room.  

The proposed policy change will reduce the cost born by the Mutual to an average of $53.00 
per reimbursement with a flat rate of $32.00 per room being dispersed to the member.   

Prepared By: Melody Thomas, Maintenance Programs Coordinator 

Reviewed By: Olga Torres, Maintenance Operations Specialist 
Patrick Cleary, Maintenance Operations Manager 
Ernesto Munoz, P.E., Maintenance and Construction Director 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1 – Proposed Revised Resolution 01-18-XX 

Agenda Item # 13b
Page 3 of 4



United Laguna Woods Mutual 
Electrical Use Reimbursement Policy Revisions 
February 28, 2018 
Page 3 

ATTACHMENT 1 

Resolution 01-18-XX 

Revised Electricity Usage Reimbursement Policy 

WHEREAS, the  Mutual  has  historically  reimbursed members  for  electricity 
consumption  related  to  the  restoration  of  manors  as  a  result  of  moisture 
intrusion, as well as for excess electricity consumed due to hot water supply 
line leaks; and 

WHEREAS, the practice of reimbursing members for electricity usage has not 
been formally recorded as an explicit United Mutual policy; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, March 13, 2018, that the Board of 
Directors of this Corporation hereby adopts the revised Electricity Usage 
Reimbursement Policy, in accordance with Resolution 01-06-75 (Damage 
Restoration Policy), as follows: 

• For moisture-intrusion events where dry-down of property is required, the
Mutual will reimburse for electricity used at a flat rate of $30.00 for each
room requiring the use of dry down equipment, as verified by the Moisture
Intrusion Coordinator.

• For hot water leaks where excess electricity has been consumed, the Mutual
will reimburse for excess electricity consumption for a maximum period of
three Southern California Edison billing periods, as evidenced by detailed
billing statements for each of the three periods involved.  Additional
electricity use beyond the period of three billing cycles is the responsibility of
the Member and is not reimbursable by the Mutual.

• All reimbursements will be charged to the Contingency Fund.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 01-10-268 adopted December 14, 
2010 is hereby superseded and cancelled; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this 
resolution. 

Agenda Item # 13b
Page 4 of 4



this page intentionally left blank



Financial Report
As of January 31, 2018

INCOME STATEMENT

ACTUAL
(in Thousands)

TOTAL REVENUE $3,418

TOTAL EXPENSE 2,886

Revenue over Expense $532

Slide 1

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 1 of 5



Financial Report
As of January 31, 2018

Through January, United was better than budget by $601K 

primarily due the timing of invoices and budget distribution that 

differs from scheduled work for:

Expenditures 

• Wasteline Remediation, work in progress.

• Roof Replacement, work is scheduled to begin in September.

• Building Structure Replacement, funding for this program is on 

a contingent basis; to date, work has not been required. 

• Water Lines, to date, no buildings qualify for replacement, 

based on leak report. Slide 2

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 2 of 5



Financial Report
As of January 31, 2018

Total Non Assessment Revenues $156,986

Slide 3

39% Golf Cart Electric Fee

19% Interest Income

11% Fees and Charges for Services

10% Laundry

7% Miscellaneous

6% Resale Processing Fee

5% Lease Processing Fee

2% Additional Occupant Fee

1% Merchandise Sales

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 3 of 5



Financial Report
As of January 31, 2018

Total Expenses $2,885,936

Slide 4

41% Employee Compensation and Related

29% Property and Sales Tax

13% Utilities and Telephones

7% Material and Supplies

4% Insurance

3% Net Allocations To Mutuals

2% Outside Services

1% Other

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 4 of 5



Financial Report
As of January 31, 2018

NON OPERATING FUND BALANCES ACTUAL
(in Thousands)

BEGINNING BALANCES: 1/1/18 $22,433

Contributions & Interest 1,023 

Expenditures (521)

Current Balances: 1/31/18 $22,935

Slide 5

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 5 of 5



this page intentionally left blank



 
 OPEN MEETING 

 

REPORT OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE  
UNITED LAGUNA WOODS MUTUAL FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 Tuesday, January 30, 2018 – 2:00 p.m. 

Laguna Woods Village Community Center Sycamore Room, 24351 El Toro Road 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Gary Morrison - Chair, Steve Leonard, Juanita Skillman, Pat 
English, Manuel Armendariz 

  
OTHERS PRESENT: Andre Torng, Prakash Achrekar, Janey Dorrell 
  
MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
  
STAFF PRESENT: Betty Parker, Solange Backes 
 

 
Call to Order 
Director Morrison chaired the meeting and called it to order at 2:00 p.m.   
 
Acknowledgment of Media 
None.   
 
Approval of Agenda 
By consensus, the Committee agenda was approved with the following additions: 
    

- Wasteline Remediation 
- Financial Qualifications 
- Delinquency Procedures 
- Solar Savings 
- Pushmatics  

 
Approval of the Regular Meeting Report of November 28, 2018  
By consensus, the Committee report was approved as presented.   
 
Chair Remarks 
None. 
 
Member Comments (Items Not on the Agenda) 
Director Torng commented on ArborPro software.  
 
Department Head Update 
None.  
 

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 1 of 2



Report of United Finance Committee Regular Open Meeting 
January 30, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

Review Preliminary Financial Statements dated December 31, 2017 

The Committee reviewed financials through December 31, 2017. Discussion ensued and 
questions were addressed.  

Director Leonard requested information on Electric Vehicle registrations based on the number of 
vehicles paying fees each month.   

Pushmatics 
The Committee discussed various issues surrounding the scope of electrical panel 
replacements. 

Projections for Pushmatic panel replacements were directed to be discussed at the next M&C 
Committee meeting.  

Wasteline Remediation 
Director Morrison commented on water intrusion events. 

Director Leonard asked for Wasteline remediation event code. The event code request was 
directed to be addressed at the next M&C Committee meeting. 

Financial Requirements   
Director Leonard gave background of financial requirements for income and assets and 
proposed changes that are currently on 30-day notice.  The Committee requested further review 
as a future agenda item.  

Records Request Fee 
The Committee discussed the administrative time required to meet member records requests.  
Ms. Parker, Financial Services Director, clarified Civil Code guidelines for inspection of records 
and charges that are allowed for producing copies or redacting personal information.   

Future Agenda Items 
Financial Requirements. 

Committee Member Comments 
None.  

Date of Next Meeting – Tuesday, March 27, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. 

Adjournment – The meeting recessed to closed session at 3:57 p.m. 

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 2 of 2



7648 $23,481,992 $308,974$308,782January $14,821,540

6349 $18,400,200 $292,067$375,105February $18,380,142

**80 $24,765,800 $309,573March *

**88 $29,024,579 $329,825April *

**105 $34,046,751 $327,373May *

**90 $31,945,600 $354,951June *

**68 $21,413,120 $314,899July *

**90 $29,277,556 $325,306August *

**83 $25,481,938 $310,755September *

**75 $26,703,200 $356,043October *

**86 $29,641,100 $344,664November *

**88 $31,413,715 $356,974December *

TOTAL 139.00 $41,882,192

MON AVG 69.00 $20,941,096 $300,520

97.00

48.00 $16,600,841

$33,201,682

$341,944

* Amount is excluded from percent calculation

Monthly Resale Report

REPORT PERIOD

February, 2018All MutualsCommunity Services Department

MUTUALPREPARED BY

NO. OF RESALES TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$ AVG RESALE PRICE

MONTH LAST YEARTHIS YEAR LAST YEAR LAST YEARTHIS YEAR THIS YEAR

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: of1Page 103/02/2018

Agenda Item # 14a
Page 1 of 6



3823 $8,968,930 $236,024$261,495January $6,014,390

3521 $8,512,700 $243,220$288,536February $6,059,250

**38 $9,580,000 $252,105March *

**43 $10,177,429 $236,684April *

**60 $15,888,800 $264,813May *

**40 $10,744,150 $268,604June *

**32 $7,887,100 $246,472July *

**43 $11,310,367 $263,032August *

**37 $9,461,900 $255,727September *

**29 $7,898,500 $272,362October *

**37 $9,793,900 $264,700November *

**49 $12,579,440 $256,723December *

TOTAL 73.00 $17,481,630

MON AVG 36.00 $8,740,815 $239,622

44.00

22.00 $6,036,820

$12,073,640

$275,015

% CHANGE -
YTD

-39.7% -30.9% 14.8%

% Change calculated (ThisYear - LastYear)/LastYear

* Amount is excluded from percent calculation

Monthly Resale Report

REPORT PERIOD

February, 2018UnitedCommunity Services Department

MUTUALPREPARED BY

NO. OF RESALES TOTAL SALES VOLUME IN $$ AVG RESALE PRICE

MONTH LAST YEARTHIS YEAR LAST YEAR LAST YEARTHIS YEAR THIS YEAR

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: of1Page 103/02/2018

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 2 of 6



02/02/2018 The Uhrik Group Homestead Escrow1-S 1 Keller Williams Real EstateCasa Blanca$280,000

02/05/2018 HomeSmart Evergreen Granite Escrow15-Q 1 HomeSmart EvergreenCasa Blanca$215,000

02/26/2018 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Granite Escrow82-N 1 Century 21 Rainbow RealtyCasa Blanca$210,000

02/08/2018 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Pacific Closing Services107-H 1 RedfinMajorca$210,000

02/26/2018 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Pacific Closing Services124-G 1 HomeSmart EvergreenMajorca$225,000

02/08/2018 Regency Real Estate Homestead Escrow198-G 1 Home Hunter Inc.Granada$255,550

02/21/2018 Century 21 Rainbow Granite Escrow218-C 1 Laguna Premier Realty, IncBarcelona$340,000

02/16/2018 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Pacific Closing Services236-B 1 HomeSmart EvergreenSeville$375,000

02/23/2018 HomeSmart Evergreen Escrow Options Group279-A 1 Surterre Properties, Inc.La Corona$260,000

02/14/2018 HomeSmart Evergreen Escrow Options Group301-D 1 HomeSmart EvergreenMadrid$370,000

02/07/2018 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Granite Escrow313-C 1 Century 21 Rainbow RealtyCordoba$512,000

02/26/2018 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Granite Escrow320-F 1 Jean Johnson-VogelCordoba$339,000

02/05/2018 Legacy 15 Real Estate Pure Logic Escrow416-C 1 Re/Max Associated RealtorsSan 
Sebastian

$255,000

02/02/2018 Westgate Realty Homestead Escrow635-A 1 Arbor Real EstateCastilla$255,000

02/22/2018 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Pacific Closing Services678-Q 1 Coldwell BankerCasa 
Contenta

$218,000

02/14/2018 HomeSmart Evergreen Escrow Options Group813-A 1 HomeSmart EvergreenCasa 
Contenta

$329,000

02/07/2018 Century 21 Rainbow Homestead Escrow897-P 1 First Team EstatesCasa 
Contenta

$225,000

02/13/2018 Legacy 15 Real Estate Platinum One897-O 1 Harcourts Prime PropertiesCasa 
Contenta

$280,000

02/28/2018 Laguna Premier Realty, Inc Pacific Closing Services953-A 1 Laguna Premier Realty, IncCasa Linda$225,900

02/16/2018 HomeSmart Evergreen Escrow Options Group2079-D 1 New Star Realty & InvestmentSeville$290,000

02/21/2018 Red Point Realty Inc Escrow Options Group2155-B 1 HomeSmart EvergreenValencia$389,800

United Laguna Woods Mutual

Resales Report

February, 2018

Manor EscrowBuyer RealtorClose Price Model/Style Listing RealtorMutual

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: 1Page 2of03/02/2018

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 3 of 6



United Laguna Woods Mutual

Resales Report

February, 2018

Manor EscrowBuyer RealtorClose Price Model/Style Listing RealtorMutual

Total Resale Price:

Number of Resales:

Average Resale Price: $288,536

21

$6,059,250

Median Resale Price: $260,000

Prepared by Community Services Department as of: 2Page 2of03/02/2018

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 4 of 6



Resales - 5 Year Comparison

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Month

0

12

24

36

48

60

72

84

96

108

120

N
o
.O
f 
U
n
it
s

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Resales 5-Yr Comparison - All Mutuals Page 1 03/02/2018 09:44

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 5 of 6



New Monthly Transactions

MONTH 1 Month 3 Months 6 Months 12 Months Renewed Leases Renewals Extensions

JAN. 0 32 45 391 32 500 47 26 25 0
FEB. 0 35 46 404 35 520 24 25 31 1

MARCH 0
APRIL 0
MAY 0
JUNE 0
JULY 0

AUGUST 0
SEPT. 0
OCT. 0
NOV. 0
DEC. 0

Monthly 
Average 0.0 33.5 45.5 397.5 33.5 510.0

Jan‐
Feb 516.5 35.5 25.5 28.0 0.5

Percentage 
Leased 520 / 6323 = 8% New Leases = Units Sublet

485

514
518
479
490
492
503
497
479
477
471

519

Total 
Expirations

MONTHLY LEASING REPORT
Report Period: 
February-2018

LEASES IN EFFECT Total 
this year

Total last 
year

Agenda Item # 14a 
Page 6 of 6



Agenda Item # 14e 
Page 1 of 3



Agenda Item # 14e 
Page 2 of 3



Agenda Item # 14e 
Page 3 of 3



this page intentionally left blank



 
 OPEN MEETING 

 
 

REPORT OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE UNITED LAGUNA WOODS 
MUTUAL MAINTENANCE AND CONSTRUCTION COMMITTEE 

 
Wednesday, February 28, 2018 - 9:00 a.m. 

Laguna Woods Village Community Center Board Room   
24351 El Toro Road 

 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Don Tibbetts – Chair, Steve Leonard, Gary 
Morrison, Pat English, Janey Dorrell, Reza 
Bastani 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
 
ADVISORS PRESENT: Del Ng & Jack Bassler 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Ernesto Munoz – Staff Officer, Guy West, 

Rodger Richter, Laurie Chavarria 
 
1. Call to Order 
 

Chair Tibbetts called the meeting to order at 9:07 a.m. 
 
2. Acknowledgement of Media 
 

Chair Tibbetts noted no members of the media were present. 
 
3. Approval of the Agenda 
 

The agenda was approved as written.  
 
4. Approval of Meeting Report for December 27, 2017 
 

Director Leonard requested that a correction be made to Item 16 on page 3 of 
4.  The Meeting Report for December 27, 2017 was approved as amended.  

 
5. Chairman’s Remarks 
 

Chair Tibbetts had no remarks.   
 
6. Member Comments - (Items Not on Agenda)  

 

Agenda Item # 14g 
Page 1 of 4



United Laguna Woods Mutual Maintenance & Construction Committee                   Open Meeting 
February 28, 2018 
Page 2 of 4  
 

 

 Clark Farrell (563-N) – commented on the window replacement policy.  
 

 Kathy Schill (2189-A) – commented on a metal handrail that needs to be 
painted in front of her building. 

 
 Roberta Berk (933-B) – commented on the services provided by the Mutual.  

 
 Cash Achrekar (201-E) – commented on the epoxy line remediation 

program. 
 

 Juanita Skillman (2154-N) – commented on a street sweeping for the cul-
de-sacs.   
 

 Maxine McIntosh (68-C) – commented on the two benches on Serpentine 
Walk. 
 

Ernesto Munoz and Directors Morrison, Leonard, English, Dorrell and Tibbetts 
briefly responded to all member comment. 
 
Chair Tibbetts directed staff to take a look at the benches on Serpentine walk and 
replace them if necessary with the standard bench approved by the Mutual. 
  
7. Department Head Update 

 
Ernesto Munoz did not provide an update. 
 

Consent: 
 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 
enacted by the Committee by one motion.  In the event that an item is removed 
from the Consent Calendar by members of the Committee, such item(s) shall be 
the subject of further discussion and action by the Committee. 
 
8. Project Log  
9. Maintenance Programs Reports  
10. Maintenance Expenditures Report & Variance Explanations  
11. Toilet Replacement Report 
 
 

A motion was made and unanimously carried to approve all items listed in the 
Consent Calendar. 
 
Reports: 
 
12. Review of Service List for Handyman Program 
 
Ernesto Munoz provided a brief summary of the report and asked for approval of 
the Description of Services for the Handyman Program. 

Agenda Item # 14g 
Page 2 of 4



United Laguna Woods Mutual Maintenance & Construction Committee                   Open Meeting 
February 28, 2018 
Page 3 of 4  
 

 

 
Discussion ensued regarding offered services, program costs; appointment wait 
times, outside vendors and how to sign up for the program. 
 
A motion was made and unanimously carried to approve the description of 
services list for the Handyman Services Program. 
 
13. Request for Information on the Pushmatic Panel Replacement Program 
 
Ernesto Munoz, Guy West and Rodger Richter summarized the report and 
answered questions from the Committee. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the necessity of the report, the length of the report, 
requests for information from board members, change orders, arc fault protection, 
code requirements, final inspections and salvage value of the old breakers,  
 
A motion was made to accept staff’s recommendation that the proposed resolution 
listed in the request for information on the Pushmatic Panel Replacement Program 
not be entertained and that the program continue to move forward.  
 
By a vote of 3/1/1 (Director Bastani opposed, Director English abstained) the 
motion carried. 
 
14. RFP for Energy Consultant 
 
Ernesto Munoz provided an update on the Request for Proposal for Energy 
Consultant Services and answered questions from the Committee. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding energy priorities, possible consultant services 
performed; companies available to perform the scope of work, not-to-exceed 
contracts and representatives for the interview panel.  
 
A motion was made and unanimously approved to advertise this RFP for Energy 
Consultant Services and return with a contract award to a future closed session.  
 
By a vote of 4/1/0 (Director Bastani opposed), the motion carried. 
 
Director Gary Morrison will be the representative for United Mutual during the 
consultant evaluation interviews. 
 
15. Electrical Use Reimbursement Policy Revisions 
 
Ernesto Munoz briefly discussed the current policy and the process for electrical 
use reimbursements from moisture intrusion events. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding water intrusion causes, electricity costs, dry down 
times, and the amount of plumbing stoppages in the community. 

Agenda Item # 14g 
Page 3 of 4



United Laguna Woods Mutual Maintenance & Construction Committee                   Open Meeting 
February 28, 2018 
Page 4 of 4  
 

 

 
A motion was made to approve a revised Electricity Usage Reimbursement Policy 
and Resolution which will offer a standard reimbursement rate of $32.00 per room, 
for excess electricity used during moisture intrusion events where dry-down of the 
property is required. 
 
By a vote of 4/1/0 (Director Bastani opposed), the motion carried. 
 
Items for Future Agendas: 
 

 SCE Parcel Easement Request  

 Appliance Policy Revision for Installations by VMS Staff 

 Copper Pipe Supply Line Leaks Report (April, July, and October 2018) 
 
Concluding Business: 
 

Committee Member Comments 
 

 Director Morrison commented on the order of importance for wasteline 
remediation, copper pipe supply line remediation, pushmatic panel and 
main panel replacements for budget purposes.  He requested an 
explanation on what the component sheet for Electric – New encompassed. 
 

 Director Leonard commented on the moisture intrusion expenditures from 
rain leaks in 2017, the roofing program and the need for plumbing event 
codes to better track costs and solutions. 
 

 Advisor Bassler commented on the number of directors assigned to the 
M&C Committee. 
 

 Director Bastani commented that he’d like to see the budget amount for 
projects from previous years added to the project log. 

 
Date of Next Meeting – April 25, 2018 
 
Adjournment 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:22 a.m. 

 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Don Tibbetts, Chair 
 
 

DRAFT 

Agenda Item # 14g 
Page 4 of 4



Laguna Woods 
Village
February 16, 2018

Pre-Audit Communications  – Boards of Directors
December 31, 2017

Agenda Item # 15a 
Page 1 of 14



2© 2017 KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International 
Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. NDPPS 660324

Core engagement team

— Chris Ray, Engagement Partner

— Mark Thomas, Engagement Quality Control Reviewing Partner

— Spencer Endicott, Engagement Senior Manager

— Chad Franks, Tax Principal

— Valarie Ball, Tax Senior Manager

This presentation to the Boards of Directors is intended solely for the information and use of the Boards of Directors and management and is not intended to 
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. This presentation is not intended for general use, circulation or publication and 
should not be published, circulated, reproduced or used for any purpose without our prior written permission in each specific instance.

Agenda Item # 15a 
Page 2 of 14



3© 2017 KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International 
Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. NDPPS 660324

Audit plan – Scope
Scope of work Audit of the financial statements of the Golden Rain Foundation of 

Laguna Woods and Affiliate, United Laguna Woods Mutual and Third 
Laguna Hills Mutual.  An audit of financial statements includes 
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for 
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control over financial reporting.

Applicable financial 
reporting framework

U.S. generally accepted accounting principals

Applicable auditing standards U.S. generally accepted auditing standards

Agenda Item # 15a 
Page 3 of 14



4© 2017 KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International 
Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. NDPPS 660324

Audit plan – Materiality

— Professional standards require that we exercise professional judgment when we 
consider materiality and its relationship with audit risk when determining the nature, 
timing, and extent of our audit procedures, and when evaluating the effect of 
misstatements.

— Information is material if its misstatement or omission could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial 
statements. 

— Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and are 
affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both.

— Judgments about matters that are material to users of the financial statements are 
based on a consideration of the common financial information needs of users as a 
group. The possible effect of misstatements on specific individual users, whose needs 
may vary widely, is not considered.

Agenda Item # 15a 
Page 4 of 14



5© 2017 KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International 
Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. NDPPS 660324

Audit plan – Deliverables and time line
— Plan audit approach for 

upcoming audits
— Identify key members of the 

engagement team, including 
specialists as needed

— Complete audit procedures
— Discuss key issues and 

deficiencies identified with 
management and Audit Task 
Force

— Review of financial statement 
and disclosures

— Obtain written representation 
from management

— Issue audit opinions on financial 
statements

— Present required 
communications to Select Audit 
Task Force and Boards of 
Directors

— Meetings with management to 
discuss key issues

— Present audit plan to Select 
Audit Task Force and Boards of 
Directors

— Start audit fieldwork

— Perform risk assessment 
procedures and identify risks

— Evaluate entity-level controls
— Determine planned audit 

approach
— Understand accounting and 

reporting activities

Risk 
Assessment

Planning

Start of 
fieldwork

Completion of
fieldwork

Reporting

Preparation
of strategy

Ongoing 
communication with:
— Audit Task Force
— Management

Agenda Item # 15a 
Page 5 of 14



6© 2017 KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International 
Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. NDPPS 660324

Audit plan – Deliverables and time line
Audit reports and time 
line

— Auditors’ report on the December 31, 2017 financial statements and summary 
financial statements of the following entities:

— Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods and Affiliate

— United Laguna Woods Mutual

— Third Laguna Hills Mutual

— Planning and fieldwork timing: February 21, 2018 – March 26, 2018

— Draft financials to be provided to KPMG: TBD

— Meeting with Select Audit Task Force: TBD

— Issue final audit reports: TBD

Other deliverables — Material written communications between KPMG and management

— Required communications between KPMG and the Select Audit Task Force 
and Boards of Directors

Agenda Item # 15a 
Page 6 of 14



7© 2017 KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International 
Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. NDPPS 660324

Audit plan – Auditing and accounting matters
Areas of Audit Emphasis:

— Cash, cash equivalents, and investments

— Property and equipment

— Revenues

- Operating assessments

- Additions to restricted funds

- Other revenues

— Expenses

- Expenses paid from restricted funds

- Amounts paid to managing agent for compensation/payroll and related benefits

- Direct operating expenses

- Shared operating expenses

— Members’ equity

— Financial statements and related footnote disclosures

Agenda Item # 15a 
Page 7 of 14



8© 2017 KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International 
Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. NDPPS 660324

Risk assessment
Based on our risk assessment procedures, the following are significant risks/financial statement 
level risks that may result in a material misstatement (due to fraud or error) in the financial 
statements and our planned audit approach in response to such significant risks:

Significant risks/financial statement level risks:

Due to Error

— No significant risks or financial statement level risks noted in planning the audits that may 
result in a material misstatement due to error.

Due to Fraud

— Risk of management override of controls – Although the level of risk of management override 
of controls will vary from entity to entity, the risk nevertheless is present in all entities. 

Agenda Item # 15a 
Page 8 of 14



9© 2017 KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International 
Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. NDPPS 660324

Objectives of an audit
— The objective of an audit of financial statements is to enable the auditor to express an 

opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by 
management are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

— We plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused by error or 
fraud. Although not absolute assurance, reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance.

— Our audit includes: 

- Performing tests of the accounting records and such other procedures as we 
consider necessary in the circumstances to provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion.

- Assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

Agenda Item # 15a 
Page 9 of 14



10© 2017 KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International 
Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. NDPPS 660324

Responsibilities
Management is responsible for:

— Preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, including disclosures, in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)

— For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

— Ensuring that each entity’s operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and 
regulations, including compliance with the provisions of laws and regulations that determine the reported 
amounts and disclosures in the each entity’s financial statements, and for informing the auditor of any known 
material violations of such laws and regulations

— To provide access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters, additional 
information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit, and unrestricted access to 
persons within each entity with whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

— Adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and affirming that the effects of any 
uncorrected misstatements aggregated by the auditor are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, 
to the financial statements taken as a whole.

— Providing the auditor with a letter confirming certain representations made during the audit that includes, but 
is not limited to, management’s:

- Disclosure of all significant deficiencies, including material weaknesses, in the design or operation of 
internal controls that could adversely affect each entity’s financial reporting

- Acknowledgement of their responsibility for the design and implementation of programs and controls to 
prevent , deter, and detect fraud.

Agenda Item # 15a 
Page 10 of 14



11© 2017 KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International 
Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. NDPPS 660324

Responsibilities (continued)
KPMG is responsible for:

— Planning and performing our audits, with an attitude of professional skepticism, to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused by 
fraud or error. Accordingly, there is some risk that a material misstatement of the financial statements will 
remain undetected.  Although not absolute assurance, reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. 
Our audits are not designed to detect error or fraud that is immaterial to the financial statements.

— Conducting the audits in accordance with professional standards and complying with the rules and 
regulations of the Code of Professional Conduct of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and 
the ethical standards of relevant CPA societies, and relevant state boards of accountancy.

— Forming and expressing an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by 
management with the oversight of the Select Audit Task Force are presented fairly, in all material respects, in 
conformity with GAAP

— An audit of the financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a 
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. 

— Communicating to the Select Audit Task Force all required information, including significant matters, that are 
in our professional judgment, relevant to the responsibilities of those charged with governance in overseeing 
the financial reporting process. 

— Communicating to management and the Select Audit Task Force in writing all significant deficiencies and 
material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit and reporting to management in writing all 
deficiencies noted during our audit that, in our professional judgment, are of sufficient importance to merit 
management’s attention. The objective of our audits of the financial statements is not to report on each 
entity’s internal control and we are not obligated to search for material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
as part of our audit of the financial statements.

— Communicating to the Select Audit Task Force circumstances that affect the form and content of the auditors’ 
reports, if any.

Agenda Item # 15a 
Page 11 of 14



12© 2017 KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International 
Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. NDPPS 660324

Responsibilities (continued)
Audit Committee responsibilities include:

Governance:

— Evaluating the audit committee charter, responsibilities, effectiveness assessments, and 
orientation protocol.

— Managing conflicts of interest and related party transactions

Audit Quality: 

— Oversight and review of external auditor’s independence and objectivity.

— Evaluating the soundness of the audit strategy, including approach and scope.

— Reviewing the financial statements and management letter, if any.

Other Areas: 

— Oversight of enterprise risk identification, mitigation, monitoring and compliance with laws and 
regulations.

— Oversight of technology including cyber-security, privacy, new systems, disaster recovery, 
vendor security, and IT governance.

Agenda Item # 15a 
Page 12 of 14



13© 2017 KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International 
Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. NDPPS 660324

Responsibilities for other information in documents 
containing audited financial statements
— The auditors’ report on the financial statements does not extend to other information in 

documents containing audited financial statements, excluding required supplementary 
information.

— The auditors’ responsibility is to make appropriate arrangements with management to obtain 
the other information prior to the report release date and to read the other information to 
identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements or material 
misstatements of fact.

— Any material inconsistencies or misstatements of facts that are not resolved prior to the report 
release date, and that require revision of the other information, may result in KPMG modifying 
or withholding the auditors’ report or withdrawing from the engagement.

Agenda Item # 15a 
Page 13 of 14



© 2017 KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firm of the KPMG network of 
independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved. NDPPS 660324

The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

The information contained herein is of a general nature and is not intended to address the circumstances of any particular 
individual or entity. Although we endeavor to provide accurate and timely information, there can be no guarantee that such 
information is accurate as of the date it is received or that it will continue to be accurate in the future. No one should act on 
such information without appropriate professional advice after a thorough examination of the particular situation.

kpmg.com/socialmedia

Presenter’s Contact Details

Chris Ray Spencer Endicott
KPMG LLP KPMG LLP
949-885-5595 949-431-7281
cray@kpmg.com sendicott@kpmg.com

Agenda Item # 15a 
Page 14 of 14



DRAFT

Agenda Item # 15f 
Page 1 of 1


	12a Staff Report - Handyman Program 3-13-18.pdf
	Untitled
	Untitled

	13a United Committee Appointments.pdf
	13a United Committee Assignments.pdf
	Blank Page


	13b Staff Report - Electrical Use Reimbursement Policy Revision 3-13-18.pdf
	Blank Page

	15a Laguna Woods Village Audit Committee Entrance Meeting - cbr.pdf
	Laguna Woods Village
	Core engagement team
	Audit plan – Scope
	Audit plan – Materiality
	Audit plan – Deliverables and time line
	Audit plan – Deliverables and time line
	Audit plan – Auditing and accounting matters
	Risk assessment
	Objectives of an audit
	Responsibilities
	Responsibilities (continued)
	Responsibilities (continued)
	Responsibilities for other information in documents containing audited financial statements
	Slide Number 14

	Blank Page
	11c NODA Resolutions 03132018.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	15a Laguna Woods Village Audit Committee Entrance Meeting - cbr.pdf
	Laguna Woods Village
	Core engagement team
	Audit plan – Scope
	Audit plan – Materiality
	Audit plan – Deliverables and time line
	Audit plan – Deliverables and time line
	Audit plan – Auditing and accounting matters
	Risk assessment
	Objectives of an audit
	Responsibilities
	Responsibilities (continued)
	Responsibilities (continued)
	Responsibilities for other information in documents containing audited financial statements
	Slide Number 14

	12a Staff Report - Handyman Program 3-13-18.pdf
	Untitled
	Untitled

	12a Staff Report - Handyman Program 3-13-18.pdf
	Untitled
	Untitled

	Blank Page
	11d Staff Report - Election Schedule for 2018 (2)(RAH edited).pdf
	Blank Page

	11d Staff Report - Election Schedule for 2018.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	14a United Finance Report 2018-01-30 OPEN.pdf
	Gary Morrison, Chair

	12b United SR1 - Establishing a Policy for Directors' Access to Corporate Books and Records.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	13a United Committee Appointments.pdf
	13a United Committee Assignments.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page



